Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Sify Infinit Spaces Limited (the
“Company’) and its associate (the Company and its associate are collectively referred to as the “Group™ which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
{including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “Consclidated financial statements").

in our opinion and to the best of our information and accarding te the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2025, and their consclidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income,
their consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(*SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our apinion therecn, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

1

Valuation of Trade Receivables:

The collectability of the Group’s aged
Trade Receivables and the valuation of
allowance for impairment of Trade
Receivables is a Key Audit Matter due to
the judgement involved in assessing the
recoverability. The Trade Receivables as
at March 31, 2025 is INR 28,793 lakhs and
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Principal Audit Procedures Performed:

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied the
following audit procedures in this area, among others,
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

* We evaluated and tested the Group's processes
for trade receivables, inciuding the credit control,
collection and provisioning processes.

s We evaluated the management view point and
estimates used to determine the allowance for bad
and doubtiul debts.
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for the year ended March 31, 2025 is INR | « We verified the appropriateness of the accounting

150 fakhs. policies as disclosed In Note C(2)(a) to the
Consolidated financial statements.

« We have reviewed the ageing, tested the validity
of the receivables, the subsequent collections of
trade receivables, the past payment and credit
history of the customer, disputes (if any) with
customers and based on discussion with the
Group’s management  (information and
explanation provided by them) and evidences
collected, we understood and evaluated the
reason for delay in realisation of the receivables
and possibility of realisation of the aged
receivables,

¢ Where there were indicators that trade receivables
were unlikely to be collected, we assessed the
adequacy of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables.

* We tested the sufficiency of the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts charged in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note B(6)(b), which describes the restatement of the Company's previously issued financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. The restatement was made in accordance with Ind AS 8
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ regarding the presentation of Compound
Financial Instruments. The impact of such changes on the items of Consolidated financial statements are stated
in the said note. Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the Information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group In accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
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other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for

the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consoclidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasocnable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its assoclate which are companies
incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern,

¢ FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company and its
associate company to express an opinion on the Consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
included in the Consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quatitative
factors in (j} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ji} to evaluate
-the effact of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated financia! statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included in the
Consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March
31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its associate company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Company and
its associate which are incorporated in India are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appeinted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Company and its associate
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
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Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated financial statements of
those companies.

g. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(18) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
neither paid nor provided remuneration in the books and accordingly the question of exceeding the
limit laid down under section 197 read with schedule V to the act doesn't arise.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its Consolidated financial
position in its Consolidated financial statements — Refer Note D(20}{a) (Contingent liabilities)
to the Consolidated financial statements;

The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts — Refer Note D(35)(a) (Derivative Financial instruments) to the Consolidated
financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company and its associate during the year ended March 31, 2025.

{a) The respective managements of the Company and its associate which is incorporated in
India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the Company or associate to, or
in, any other person or entity, outside the Company, including foreign entity
(‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or ctherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or associate (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the lke on behaif of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective managements of the Company and its associate which is incorporated in
India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or associate from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company or associate shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide-any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us on the Company and its associate which is
incorporated in [ndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contaln any material
misstatement.

The preference dividend paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this audit
report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, performed by us on the Company
and its associate incorporated in India, the Company and its associate have used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for alf relevant transactions
recorded in the software (refer Note D(43) to the Consolidated financial stataments). Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trall feature
being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company and
above referred associate as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to
be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based
on the Auditor’s reports issued by us for the Company and its assoclate as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2025, included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Group, to which repotting
under CARQ is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO
reports except for the following: ’

S.No. | Name of the |CIN Holding Clause number
Company company/ of the CARO
subsidiary/ report which is
associate/ joint | qualified or is
venture adverse
1 Sify Infinit Spaces | U74999TN2017PLC119607 | Holding Company | Clause 3())(¢)
Limited
Place: Chennai For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates
Date: April 18, 2025 Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 0019978

QKaALL MMJU{L/

S Y Suryanandh

Partner

Membership No: 237830
UDIN: 25237830BMNTLX 1429
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1{f} under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report
of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of Sify Infinit Spaces Limited (“the
Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its associate incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its associate incorporated in India, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and the Standards on
Auditing, both, issued by ICAI, and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
Consolidated financial statements was estfablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to these Consolidated financial statements and their cperating effectiveness.
Qur audit of interna! financial controls with reference to these Consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Consoclidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the Consclidated financial statements of the
Company and its associate which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls with refarence to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial contral with reference to the Consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control with reference to the Consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
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fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the Consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company and its associate which are companies incorporated in India, have maintained, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based cn the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by

the ICAL
Place: Chennai ‘ For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates
Date: April 18, 2025 Chartered Accountanis

Firm Registration No: 0019975

FRN: 0019975 a&

Ne 27 K8 Y Suryanandh
| Subramaniam S1.. {m Partner
Abiramapuram, Membership No: 237830
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 As at
ASSETS
{1) Non-current asscts
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1A 1,80,993 125,744 1,03,402
(b) Right-of-use Assets 2 54,750 48,022 42,267
{c} Capital work in progress 1B 78,878 89,114 51,032
(d) Intangible assets 3 20 31 4
() Financial assets ’
(i) Investments 4 22,975 12,980 6,063
(ii) Other financial assets 5 33,615 15,096 4,418
(f) Deferred Tax assets 28 9,151 7,729 5,039
(g) Other non-current assets 6 17,381 45,847 28,185
3,97,763 3,44,563 2,40,610

(2) Current assets

(&) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 7 28,793 26,128 26,062
(ii) Cash and Bank balances 8A 29,694 12,828 21,402
(iii} Other Bank balances 8B 3,553 16,363 7.512
(iv) Other financial assets 9 1,125 1,416 630
(b) Other current assets 1G 9,543 10,23 7,370
72,708 66,966 63,176
Total Assets 4,70,471 4,11,529 3,03,786
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 51,013 50,586 50,586
{b) Other Equity ‘ 12 1,23,070 1,04,232 45,300
1,74,083 1,54,818 95,886
LIABILITIES

(1) Non - current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilitics

(i) Borrowings 13 209,772 1,70,836 1,29,731
(ii) Lease liabilities 2 28,054 27,044 19,907
(b) Provisions 14 115 51 60
(c) Other non-current liabilities 15 360 360 340
2,338,341 1,98,291 1,50,058

(2) Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i} Borrowings 16 23,043 27,950 29,235
{ii) Lease liabilities 2 2,146 1,990 3,449
(iii) Trade payables 17
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 327 91 35
Total o!.|t5tandmg dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small 20121 13,823 9,398
enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 18 7.8714 - 10,867 11,810
(b) Other current liabilities 19 5,506 3,587 3,878
(c) Provisions 14 30 72 17
58,047 58,420 57,842
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,70,471 4,11,529 3,03,786
* Refer Note B(6)

Material accounting policies and nofes to the consolidated financial statements (Refer notes C and D)
The accompanying noles referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

for Manohar Chowdhry & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sify Ipfinit Spaces Limited
Firm Registration No.; 0019978 A74999TN2017PLCT 19607

K 8 Y Suryanandh aju Vegesna CR Rao
Parer FRN: 0018975 Director Whole-tinie Director
Mernbership No.: 237830 No: 27, DIN: 00529027 ' 02624863
Subramaniam 5.,
Abiramapuram.
Chennai- 18.

J Poornasandar

GancshiSankararaman
Chief Finqetal Officer Company Secretary

Chennai
April 18, 2025



Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of services rendered
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total cxpenses

Profit before share of profit of an associate

Associate Share of profit/(loss)

Profit Before Tax

Tax expense
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Total Tax Expenses
Profit After Tax

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

in subsequent periods

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability/(asset)
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share (% 10 paid up)
Basic

Diluted

* Refer Note B(6)

For the year ended

Note No.
March 31, 2024
o) March 31, 2025 (Restated)*
21 1,42,837 1,11,417
22 2,591 2,754
1,45,428 1,14,171
23 58,240 47,737
24 5444 4,086
25 15,281 12,005
1,2and 3 32,682 25,552
26 15,750 13,373
1,27,397 1,02,753
18,031 11,418
() -
18,026 11,418
58 (6.812) (4,782)
1,422 2,689
(5,390) (2,093)
12,636 9,325
23) (12)
(23) (12)
12.613 9,313
30
245 1.84
2.41 1.84

Material accounting policies and notes to the consolidated financial statements (Refer notes C and D)
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

for Manohar Chowdhry & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 0019975

K SY Suryanandh

Partnar

Membership No.: 237830

Subramaniam $L.,
Abiramapuram,
Chennai-18,

Chennai
April 18, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
‘UJ74999TN201 7PLC1196

Director

DIN: 00522027

DJ Ponrnasanﬂﬁ}:’g‘.
-~
Company Secretary
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U4995TN2017PLC 119607

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025

For the For the
yeur ended year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
(Restated)*

Profit before tax 18,026 11,418
Adjustments for !

Depreciation and amortisation expense 32,682 25,552
Share of loss of the associate 5 -
Finance expenses (considered separately) 15,281 12,005
Allowance for doubtful debis 150 300
Provision for doubtful advances - 18
Amortisation of [ease prepayments - a7
Investment written off - 43
Unrealised foreign exchange fluctuation loss/(gain), net 44 299
Interest income (considered separately) (2,101} T (2,298)
{Profit) /loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) (180) 30
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 63,907 47,404
{Increase)/decrease in trade receivables - current (2,832} (363)
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - current 262 4zn
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - non current (18,563) {11,683)
(Increase)/decrease in other non current assets (1,473) (373)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (2,834 861
(Increase)/decrease in other bank balances 12,811 (8,851)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 6,532 4,386
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities - current 2,922 {2,990)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 385 (289)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - non current 41 2n
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - current : (42) 55
Cash generated from operations 61,116 27.715
Tax {paidyrefiund received (6.374) (6.601)
Net cash generated from operating activities {A) 54,742 21,114
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (41,825) (92,272}
Investment made in equity shares - (1,960)
Investment made in Preference Shares (10,000) (5.000)
Amount paid for acquisition of right of use assets (7,.227) (1.677)
Sale proceeds of Properiy, Plant and Equipment 180 -
Interest income received 2.032 1.833
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (56.840) {99.076)
Cash flow from financing activitics

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 83,561 58,404
Repayment of long-term borrowings {58.848) (20,912)
Proceeds from issue of Compulsorly Convertible Debentures - 60,000
Proceeds from issue of Non-Convertible Debentures 25,000 -
Increase/{decrease) in shori-term borrowings {2,795) (5,185)
Loan received/(repaid) from/te Fellow subsidiary company (2,980) (100)
Increase/(decrease) of lease liabilities ’ {4,458) (1,416)
Dividend paid on Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (225) -
Premiun received on issue of Non-Convertible Debentures 58 -
Interest paid (20,351) {18.070)
Net cash used in financing activities ) 18,962 72,721
Effect of exchanpe differences on translation of cash and bank balances (1)) 2 2
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A) +(B) + (C)}+ (D} 16,866 (5,239)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,828 18,067
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [Refer Note D (8A)] 29,694 12,828

Non-Cash financing and investing activities [Refer Note I {27)]

* Refer Note B(6)

Disclosure of changes in labilities arising from financing activities [Refer Note D (27)]

Material accounting policies and notes to the consclidated financial statements (Refer notes C and D)
As per our report of even date attached,

Jfor Manohar Chowdhry & Associates For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sify Infinit Spaces Limited

Firm Registration No.: 0019978 CIN:Y74999TN2017PLC119607

K 8 Y Suryanandh fu Veg C R Rao

Portner Direcior Whole-time Director

Membership No.: 237830 DIN: 00529027 DI(I\L:j 624863
Subramaniam §L.,

Abiramapyram.

Chennai
Aprit 18, 2025

eshSankararaman D J Poornasandar
Chief Findneial Officer Company Secretary
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

A, CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sify Infinit Spaces Limited (*Sify’ or ‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India. The address of the Company’s registered office is 2nd
Floor, Tidel Park, 4, Rajiv Gandhi Salai, Taramani, Chennai - 600113, India. The Company and its associate company SKVR Software
Solution Private Limited (are together referred to as the ‘Group’ and individually as ‘Group entities”).The Group offers Data Center services
through its data centers located in Chennai, Mumbai, NOIDA, Bangalore, Hyderabad and Kolkata. The Company was incorporated on
November 20, 2017 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Sify Technologies Limited

During the FY 2020-21, the Company acquired Data Center business from its holding company Sify Technologies Limited vide Business
Transfer Agreement. During the financial year 2024-25, the Company issued Listed, Secured, Rated Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
which are listed on BSE effective from October 04,2024,

B.  BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting, except for Statement of Cash Flow and
certain financial instruments which are measured on fair value basis. GAAP comprises Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with relevant rules as amended from time to time, pronouncements of regulatory
bodies applicable to the Company and other provisions of the Act. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to existing accounting standards requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting standards on an on-going basis.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal operating cyele and other criteria set-out in
note C (23). Based on the nature of products and services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of cumrent and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

1. Statement of Compliance

The consolidated Financial Statements comprising Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in Equity, Statement of
Cash Flow, together with notes for the year ended March 31, 2025 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS . The Financial Statements
are approved for issue by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 18, 2025,

2. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:

« Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value

« Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value

* Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.

« Share-based payments

* The defined benefit asset is recognized as the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuariak
losses, less unrecognized actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

+ In relation to lease prepayments, the initial fair value of the security deposit is estimated as the present value of the refundable amount,
discounted using the market interest rates for similar instruments. The difference between the initial fair value and the refundable amount of
the deposit is recognized as a Right of Use Asset.

The above items have been measured at fair value and the methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in Note C (18).

3. Standards issued and not effective
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on date.

4, Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (Z) which is the functional currency of the Company. All financial information
presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded to nearest lakhs except where otherwise indicated,

FRN: (014875
No: 27,

E{ Subramaniain SI.,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

5. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent
liabilities at the date of financial statements, income and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in future periods which are affected.
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumption having the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:
* Valuation of financial instruments [Note C(2)]
* Expected Credit losses on Financial Assets [Note C(2)]
+ Usefil lives of property, plant and equipment [Note C(4)]
* Usefial lives of intangible assets [Note C(6)]
* Estimate of Lease term and measurement of Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilities [Note C{7)]
* Impairment testing [Note C(9)]
* Measurement of defined employee benefit obligations [Note C (10)]
+ Measurement of share-based payments [Note C(11)]
+ Provisions [Note C(12)]

-+ Identification of performance obligation and timing of satisfaction of performance obligation, measurement of transaction price on revenue
recognition [Note C(13)]
» Utilization of tax losses and computation of deferred taxes [Note C(16)]

No: 27,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:UT4999TN2017PLC119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)
6. Restatement of Financial Statements

(a) Merger of Patel Auto Engineering Company (India) Private Limited

During the year 2022-23, Sify Technologies Limited (Holding Company) has acquired Patel Auto Engineering Company (India) Private
Limited ("PAECIPL”) having its registered office in Rabale, Navi Mumbai through Share Purchase agreement dated March 22, 2023 for a
consideration of INR 5,250 which was paid to erstwhile shareholders of PAECIPL. PAECIPL have no other asset except a Land allotted by
MIDC in their books as on the date of Acquisition.

During FY2023-24, the Board of Directors have given an approval to file a Scheme of Amalgamation ('Scheme) for the merger of its fellow
subsidiary, PAECIPL with the Company and the same was filed with Hon'ble NCLT on February 09, 2024 . Scheme of amalgamation is
approved by the Hon'ble NCLT on January 09, 2025 effective April 01, 2023. Accordingly, Company has issued 42.71,365 equity shares to
the shareholders of PAECIPL.

Consequent to the approval of scheme of amalgamation by Hon'ble NLCT, the financial statements for April 01, 2023 and March 31, 2024 has
been prepared giving effect to the merger order.

Accounting treatment of the Scheme of Merger are as follows:

1. The aforesaid merger are accounted for as per Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

2.The identity of assets and liabilities as appearing in PAECIPL have been carried forward in these financial staterents.

3. Intercompuny balances and transactions have been eliminated.

4. During the year, the PAECIPL has an other income of  0.10 and total expenses agreegating to ¥ 145 which resulted in the Net loss of €
145.

5. This financial statements as on March 31, 2024 includes the values of PAECIPL and hence are not comparable with the Financial
Statements as on March 31,2023 representing values of only Sify Infinit Spaces Limited.

The fair value of assets, liabilities and reserves pertaining to PAECIPL appearing in the financial statements of the Merged entity as
at April 01, 2023 are as follows.

Particnlars Amount(Rs.)

Right of Use Assets . 5,040
Other current assets 5
Total Assets ' 5,045
Borrowings 850
Other Current Liabilities 2
Total Liabilities 852
Net assest acquired 4,193
Consideration Paid 4,193
Goodwill / Capital reserve -

Subramaniam S
Abiramapuram.
Chernat-18




Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)
(b) Presentation of Compound Financial Instruments

The Company had issued Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs”) to Sify Technologies Limited (“STL™), Kotak Special Situation
Fund (“KSSF”) and Kotak Data Center Fund (“KDDCF™) amounting to of ¥ 22,250, ¥ 40,000 and ¥ 60,000, respectively. The CCDs issued to
KSSF are backed by a Put Option Agreement with the holding Company M/s Sify Technologies Limited. These CCDs carry an obligation to
pay a fixed interest of 6% p.a.

Previously, the Company presented these CCDs as financial liabilities in the financial statements until the fixed number of shares to be issued
upon conversion of the CCDs was determined. Subsequently, once the fixed numnber of shares to be issued upon conversion was determined,
these CCDs were presented as equity. The Company has recognized the entire interest paid as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as there is an unconditional obligation on the Company to make the interest payments.

The Company re-evaluated the presentation of Compound Financial Instruments in accordance with Ind AS 32 and concluded that a change in
presentation is required as below:

* The present value of the future interest obligation should be presented as a financial liability,

* The residual value after deducting the financial liability component identified above is to be evaluated under Ind AS 32, for determining
whether the financial instrument is a financial liability or equity.

Accordingly,the residual portion of the CCDs is to be presented as a financial liability until the fixed number of shares to be issued upen
conversion is determined, Once the fixed number of shares are determined, the residual value should be presented-as equity. Further, the
Company determined that only the interest on the present value of the future interest obligation on CCDs should be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss rather than the interest amount on the entire CCDs, When the liquidity event happens as pev the terms of CEDs;
the unmatured portion of the present value of future inierest obligation recognized as financial liability should be classificd as equity. These
CCDs are presented separately as “Other Equity” and will be presented as non-controlling interest upon issue of equity shares in the future.
For additional information, sce Notes D(12), D(13) & D(16) hcrein.,

The opening balance of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented has been restated.

The following tables present the impact on previeusly reported amounts it specific line items in the financial statements as at March 31, 2024
and April 01, 2023,

Changes in Statement of Assets and Liabilities:

. March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Particulars
Reported Adjustment Restated Reported Adjustment Restated

Equity :-

Other equity 1,41,907 (37,675) 1,04,232 58,043 (12,743) 45.300
Liabilities:-

Non-current borrowings 1,37,689 33,147 1,70.836 1,19.237 10,494 1,298,731
Current borrowings 23,462 4,528 27,990 26,986/ 2,249 29,235

Changes in Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs.lakhs):

. March 31, 2024
Particulars
Reported Adjustment Restated

Finance costs 15,454 (3,449) 12,005
Profit before tax 7,969 3,449 11,418
Tax expense (2,093) - (2,093)
Profit after tax 5,876 3,449 9,325
Total comprehensive 5,864 3,449 9,313
income

FRN: 0019978
Ne: 27,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLCI119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)
C. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognized in the financial statements using exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the relevant functional currency at the exchange
rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing on the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
Habilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of
transaction, Foreign cumrency differences arising on translation are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for determination of net
profit or loss during the period.

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goedwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to the
functional currency at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign eperations and cash flows are translated to the
functional currency using average cxchange rates during the period. Any differences arising on such translation are recognized in other
comprehensive income, Such differences are included in the foreign currency translation reserve “FCTR” within other components of equity.
When a foreign operation is. dlsposed off, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the FCTR is transferred to profit or loss.

2. Financial Instruments
" a. Findncial As§ets = - a ’ C :
" Financial asscts compiises investments in equity and debt securities, trade reccivables, cash and cash cquivalents and other financial assets.

Initial recognition:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade receivables. In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are added to the fair value on initial
recognition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.¢., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement:

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cashflows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortisation is recognised as
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. .

The Company while applying above criteria has classified the following financial assets at amortised cost

a) Trade receivable

b) Other financial assets.

(ii} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding are subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Fair value movements in financial assets at FVTOCI
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Equity instruments held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For other equity instruments the company
classifies the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The classification is made on initial recognition and is immevocable. Fair value changes on
equity invesiments at FVTOCI, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI).

(iii} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPLY:

Financial asset are measured at fair value through profit or loss if it does not meet the criteria for classification as measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income. All fair value changes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is
transferred and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new Liability
assumed} shall be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, lease receivables under Ind AS 109, investments in debt instruments that are carried at amortised cost,
investments in debt instruments that are carried at FVTOCI are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses for the respective
financial asset,

(1) Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the
simplified approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future
economic conditions. In this approach assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics such as industry, customer segment, past
due status and other factors which are relevant to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

(ii) Other financial assets

Other financial assets are tested for impairment based on significant change in credit risk since initial recognition and impairment is measured
based on probability of default over the lifetime when there is significant increase in credit risk.

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:;

Financial liabilities are initiafly recognised at fair value and any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are initially measured at fair value.
"Subsequent measurement: .

The financial liabilities are classified for subsequent measurement into following categories:

- at amortised cost

- at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The company is classifying the following financial liabilities at amortised cost;

a) Compulsorily convertible debentures

b) Borrowings from banks

¢) Borrowings from others

d) Finance lease liabilitics

¢) Trade payables

f) Other financial liabilities .
Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and
the maturity amount,

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL.

Compound Financial Instrument: :

The terms of & non-derivative compound financial instrument are evaluated to determine whether it contains both a liability and an equity
component. Such components are classified as financial liabilities, financial assets or equity instruments in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends and gains relating to the component that is financial liability is recognized as income or
expense in profit or loss. Distribution to holders of equity instruments is recognized directly in equity.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:
A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it i{s extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

¢. Derivative financial instruments

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are entered into by the Company fo mitigate the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
associated with certain payables, receivables and forecasted transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies, The Company also enters
into cross currency and interest rate swaps for hedging the risk against variability in cash flows of its term loan, These derivative contracts do
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, and are initially recognized at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative contracts are
recognized in profit or loss.

= .
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLCI119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

d. Oifsctting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and intends either to sertle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

e. Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. Afier initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets (which are categorised as equity instruments} at FYTOCI and financial assets or liabilities that are specifically
designated as FVTPL. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be very infrequent. The management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. A change in the business model
occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, Josses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

3. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as Equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or share options are
recognized as a deduction from Equity, net of any tax effects,

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and where applicable accumulated impairment losses. Cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchases taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes expenditure directly atiributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is
integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of Properly, Plant and Equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Amount paid as advances towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment is disclosed separately under other non-curent assets as
capital advances and the cost of assets not put to use as on balance sheet date are disclosed under “Capital work-in-progress.

Gains and losses on dispesal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment and are recognized net within “other income / other expenses” in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of
property, plant and equipment. Depreciation on contract-specific assets are charged co-terminus over the contract period. Management's
estimated usefit] lives for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 were as follows:
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Estimated useful life in years Useful life
prescribed by
Schedule IT

Buildings 28 30
Plant and equipment

- Power equipments 8 15

- Computer servers 5 6

- Computer [aptops/desktop 3 3
Furniture and fittings 5 10
Leasehold improvements 5 10
Office equipment 5 5
Motor vehicles 3 8

The management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
The depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each of the reporting date.

5. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103 Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable intangible assets and
contingent consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree. Significant estimates are required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These
valuations are conducted by independent valuation experts.

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS 103. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition. The
cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.

Transactions costs that the Company ineurs in connection with a business combination such as finder's fees, Jegal fees, due diligence fees, and
other professional and consulting fees are expensed as incurred.

The acquisition of an asset or a group of assets that does not constitute a ‘business’ as per Ind AS 103 is accounted for by identifying and
recognizing the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group of assets is allocated to such individual
identifiabie assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values on the date of purchase.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control have been accounted for using the pooling of interests methad.

6. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the intangible asset.

Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Amortization of intangible assets with finite useful lives

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they
are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the current and previous year are as follows:

Estimate of useful life in vears
System software 1-3

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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7. Leases

As alessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings, The company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
peried of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all
lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For
these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. RQU assets and lease
liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset, Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

As alessor
Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantiaily all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

8. Contract liability

Contract Liability (Uneamned income) represents unserved portion of billed contracts, Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract (i.c., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

FRN: 0019978
No.: 27,
Subramaniam 51,
* Abiramapuram,
C;} Chennai-18. &

a,,ere

(N
v2)
F Accovs



Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

9. Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the *“cash-generating unit™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-gencrating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or

* group of unifs on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment loss

Impatrment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment-
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within
eauitv.

10. Employee benefits
Employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company, as detailed below:

{a) Defined contribution plan (Provident fund)

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund)
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the find does not hold sufficient assets to pay all emplovee
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards
Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee
benefit expense in profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

(b) Defined benefit plans {Gratuitv)

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or
termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The gratuity fund is managed by the
HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited. The company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting any unrecognized
past service cost and the fair value of any plan assets,

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Company’s obligations. The caleunlation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past service costs and the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest),
are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented within equity. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Service costs, net interest expenses and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.
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(c) Short term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation o pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(d) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued
absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or termination of employment for the unutilized accrued
compensated absence. The Company recognizes an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services. The Company provides for the expected cost of compensated absence in the Statement of Profit and Loss as the additional amount
that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated based on actuarial valuations carried out by an

11. Share-based payment transactions

The employees of the Company are entitled to participate in Associate Stock Option Plan (ASOP) where the employees are issued options to
purchase shares of the Holding Company subject to vesting period. Accordingly, the fair value of option on the Grant date is amortised over
the vesting period-with zcorresponding Liability recognised against the Holding Company, which-will issue shares on exercise.

12. Provisions

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisioﬁs are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost
of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company
recogmizes any impairment 1oss on the assets associated with that contract.

13. Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenue from Data Center services.

Data Center Services (DC):

Revenue from DC services consists co-location of racks and power charges billed to customers. The contracts are mamly for a fixed rate for a
period of time, Revenue from co-location of racks, power charges and cross comnect charges are series of distinct services where the
performance obligations are completed. Service revenue is recognized as the relaied services are performed. Sale of equipments such as
servers, switches, networking equipments, cable infrastructure and racks etc are accounted as separate performance obligations if they are
distinct and its related revenues are recognised at a point in time when the control is passed on to the customer.

Multiple deliverable arrangements

In certain cases, some elements belonging to the services mentioned above are sold as a package consisting of all or some of the elements.

The Company accounts for goods or services of the package separately if they are distinct. i.e if a good or service is separately identifiable
from other promises in the contract and if the customer can benefit fmm the good or service either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer.

The Company allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation identified in the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. conselidated selling price is the price at which Company would sell 2 promised good or service separately to the customer.

If the relative stand-alone selling prices are not available, the Company estimates the same. In doing so, the Company maximise the use of
observable inputs and apply estimation methods consistently in similar circumstances.

Contract Cost

Costs to fulfil customer contracts ie the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Company can specifically
identify or the costs generate/ enhance resources of the company that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future or the costs that are expected to be recovered are recognised as asset and amortized over the contract period,

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are recognised as assets and amortized over the contract period if entity expects to recover those
costs. The Company recognise incremental cost of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortisation period of the asset that
the entity otherwise would have recognised is one year or less,
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)
Costs to obtain a contract that is incurred regardless of whether the contract is obtained are recognised as an expense when incurred, unless
those costs are explicitly chargeable to the customer regardless of whether the contract is obtained.

Significant judgements on applying Ind AS 115 - !

The Company contracts with customer include promises or airangements to transfer multiple goods or services to a customer. The Company
assess whether such aangements in the contract has distinct goods or services (performance obligation). Identification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgment to determine ability of customer to benefit independently from other promises in the contract.

The judgment is required to measure the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, The consideration could be fixed amount or
variable amount or could be both. Transaction price could also be adjusted for time value of money if contract includes a significant financing
component.

In the case of multiple arrangements in a contract, the Company allocate transaction price to each performance obligation based on
consolidated transaction price. The determination of consolidated transaction price involves judgment.

The Company uses judgment in determining timing of satisfaction of performance obligation. The Company considers how customer benefits
from goods or services as the services are rendered, who controls as the assets is created or enhanced, whether asset has an alternate use and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date, transfer of significant risk and reward to the customer,
acceptance or sign off from the customer etc.,

The Company uses judgement when capitalising the contract cost as to whether it generates or enhances resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying performance obligation in the future. :

14. Finance income

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in Statement of Profit and Loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date when the company’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of
quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

15. Finance expense

Finance expense comprises borrowing costs, bank charges, unwinding of discount on provision, fair value losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss that are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Fair value changes attributable to hedged risk are recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange difference relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Interest expense is recognised using effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a gualifying asset are capitalized as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Te the extent the Company
borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings
costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditure incurred on such asset, The capitalization rate is determined
based on the weighted average of borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are cutstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs that the Company capitalizes
during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period.
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16. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paidfrecovered for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following
temporary differences:

(i) the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss,

(i) differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and associates to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
-right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or
on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously,

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for
uncertain tax positions,

17. Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamnings per share {(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Where ordinary
shares are issued but not fully paid, they are treated in the calculation of basic earnings per share as a fraction of an ordinary share to the extent
that they were entitled to participate in dividends during the period relative to a fully paid ordinary share. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss altributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. To the extent that partly paid shares are not entitled to participate in dividends during the period, they
are treated as the equivalent of warrants or options in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

18. Fair value measurement

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal market or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
valug, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is described below:

Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(i} Investments in equity and debt securities

The fair value is determined by reference to their quoted price at the reporting date. In the absence of quoted price, the fair value of the
financial asset is measured using valuation techniques.

(ii} Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables expected to be realised beyond twelve months, excluding construction contracts in progress, is
egtimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. However in respect of such
financial instruments, fair value generally approximates the carrying amount due to the short term nature of such assets. This fair value is
determined for disclosure purposes or when acquired in a business combination.

(iii) Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on their quoted price, if available. If a quoted price is not available, the fair value is
estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of the
contract using a risk free interest rate (based on government bonds). The fair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined based on
the appropriate valuation techniques, considering the terms of the contract. Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include
adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Company and the counter party when appropriate, The fair value of the cross currency
swaps (principal only swaps) and interest rate swaps is determined based on the discounting of the future cash flows at the market rates
existing on the reporting date.

{iv) Non derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance leases, the market rate of interest is determined by reference to
similar lease agreements.

(v) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee stock options is measured using the Black-Scholes method. Measurement inputs include share price on grant date,
exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to
publicly available information), expected term of the instrument {based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour),
expected dividends, and the risk free interesi rate (based on government bonds).

19. Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any.

2{. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three

months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part
of the Company's cash management.

21. Dividend distribution to Equity shareholders
Dividend distributed to Equity shareholders is recognised as distribution to owners of capital in the Statement of Changes in Equity, in the
period in which it is paid.
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22.Related Party transactions

A) Identification of Related Parties and the Related Party Transactions

i. Every promoter, director and key managerial personnel (KMP) of the Company and its subsidiaries/ Joint venture shall give a declaration,

a. at the time of appointment;

b. periodically — as required by the Companies Act, 2013("Act").

¢. whenever there is any change in the information already submitted, provide requisite information about his / her Relatives and all firms,
entities, body corporates, in which such promoter, director or KMP is interested, whether directly or indirectly, to the Company or the
subsidiary/ Joint venture (as the case may be). Every such promoter, director and KMP shall also provide any additional information about the
transaction, that the Board /Audit Committee may reasonably request.

B) Review and approval of Related Party Transaction

(i) Approval by Audit Committee

All Related Party Transaction(s) of the Company and subsequent material modifications thersto, shall require prior approval of the Audit
Comumittee of the Company, as required under the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee shall evaluate whether the
transaction is conducted on an arm’s length basis and falls within the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Approval by Board of Directors :

In case any Related Party Transactions involving the Company are referred by the Audit Committee to the Board for its approval due to the
transaction being (i) not in the ordinary course of business, or (ii) not at an arm’s length price, the Board will.consider such factors as, nature
of the transaction, material terms, the manner of determining the pricing and the business rationale for entering into such transaction. All
Material Related Party Transactions including subsequent material modifications, which require prior shareholders’ approval, shall first
require prior approval of the Board. Any member of the Board who has any interest in any Related Party Transaction shall abstain from voting
on the Related Party Transaction.

(iif) Approval by Shareholders

Prior approval of Shareholders is required when a related party transaction entered individually or in taken together with existing transactions
during the financial year, (i.) not in the ordinary course of business, or not at an arm’s length price, or, (ii.) exceeding the materiality limits, as
defined under this policy. Any member who has any interest in any related party transaction shall abstain from voting on the related party
transaction,

C) Reporting of Related Party Transactions

1.The Company shall disclose Related Party Transactions to the stock exchanges where its securities are listed, in the format specified by SEBI
or stock exchanges, and within the prescribed timelines.

ii.The Company shall disclose in the Board’s report any related party transactions that are not in the ordinary course of business or not

23, Current/ non-current classification

An asset is classified as current if:

(a) it is expected to be realised or sald or consumed in the Company's normal operating cycle;

(b} it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

() it is expected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

(d}) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current if:

(a) it is expeeted to be settled in normal operating cycle;

" (b} it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) it is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;

(d) it has ne unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at lease twelve months afier the reporting period. -

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivaients. The Company's
normal operating cycle is twelve months,

Subramaniam $t.,
Abiramapurarm,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
D. Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

2. Right of Use Assets and Lease Liahilities

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Category of ROU asset

Land Building Total
Balance as of April 01, 2024 22,335 25,687 48,022
Additions 10,188 66 10,254
Deletions - 27} [€X))]
Depreciation expenses (309) (3,190} (3,499)
Balance as of March 31, 2025 32,214 22,536 54,750
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Category of ROU asset

Land Building Total
Balance as of April 01, 2023 (Restated) 20,921 21,346 42,267
Additions 1,675 7,327 9,002
Deletions - - -
Depreciation expenses (261) (2,986) (3,247)
Balance as of March 31, 2024 (Restated) 22,335 25,687 48,022
Particulars As at As at Asat

March 31, 2024 April 41, 2023
March 31,2025 (Restated) (Restated)
Current lease liahilities 2,146 1,990 3,449
Non-current lease liabilities 28,094 27.044 19,907
Total 30240 28.034 23.356
The movement in lease liabilities is given below :
) As at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 Mz::ﬂ':_ 33 tﬁ;m
Balance at the beginning of the year 29,034 23,356
Additions 2,898 7,089
Interest on lease liabilities 2,793 2,701
Deletions 27) -
Payment of lease liabilities (4,458) (4,112)
Balance at the end of the year 30,240 29,034

Note: Refer Note D (36) for contractual maturities of lease liabilities

Amounts recognised in profit or loss are given below

Particulars

Depreciation expenses

Interest on lease liabilities

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, including short-term
leases of low value assets

FRN: 0615978
No: 27,

L SubrarnaniamSt.,
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For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025 (Restated)
3,499 3,247
2,793 2,701
741 465




Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TNZD17PLCI19607
D. Nates forming part of the consolidated financial statements

{Al amonnts arc in Indian Rupees lakhs cxcept share data and as stated)

4, Investments - Non-current

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
{Restated) (Restated)
Investment in equity instruments - nnqueted
Invesiument in equity of others (ot cost)
Investment in Vashi Railway Station Comercial Complex Limited
[15,000 (March 31, 2024 : 15,000) equity shares of 2 10 each fully paid up] 2 2 2
Investment in Sarayu Clean Gen vt Lid.
£1,56,000 (Margh 31, 2024 ; 1,56,000) equity shares of 210 cach fully pzid up] 15 15 15
Investment in VEH Srishti Energy Pvt. Limited
[1,50,12,000 (March 31, 2024 : 1,50,12,000) equity shares of 10 each fually paid up] 3,753 3,753 3,753
Investment in Tasoula Energy Private Limited (Refer Note below)
[70,31,250 (March 31, 2024: 70,31,250) equity sharcs of 310 cach fully paid up] 2,250 2,250 2,250
Investmenl in Saffron Spice Hospitality Private Limited - - 43
Investment in Sunsure Solarpark Eighteen Private Limited 100 - -
[9.97,402 (March 31, 2024: Nil) equity shares o[ 210 cach fully paid up]
Ir in Equity af A (f (at cost}
Investment in SKVR Software Soluwtion Private Limited [refer note: 42]
[4,900 (March 31, 2024; NIL) equity shates of 210 each fully paid up] ‘1,955 1,960 -
A 8,075 7,980 6,063
Investment in preference shures - unguoted
Investmenis in Associcles (af cost)
SKVR. Software Solution Private Limited
[14,90,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 5,00,00,000) 9% Non-Cumulative Redecmable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each [ully 14,900 5,000
pauid up] -
B 14,900 5,000
Aggregale cost of unqueted kavestments (A} +(B) 22,975 12,980 6,063
Nate:
Investment in Tusouls Encryy Private Limited was made through issue of compulsorily convertible debentures i.e., for a consideration other than cash,
5. Other financiul assets - Non-current
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(Restated) {Restated}
Security deposits* 3,779 2,859 2,111
Bank deposits ** 14,136 12337 2,37
Loans 1o related parties*** 15,700 - -
33.615 15,096 4,418
* Security depusits over and shove T 50 is fair valued as per Ind AS 109, Includes an amount of 2 345 (March 31, 2024: 2 345, April 01, 2023: 2 345) given 10 bolding company as lease deposil. Refer Note D(34).
*= Represents depesils with more than 12 months maturity, subject 10 lien in fuvour of banks for obuaining bank guarantees Aetters of credit,
*** Loan given 1o SKVR Software Solution Private Limited (Associate Company). These loans carry an interest fute of 8.5%.p.6. and are repayable over a period of three years. Refer Note D(34).
6. Other Non-current assets
As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 1024 April 01,2023
(R d {Restated)
Capital advances 12,439 45,645 27,671
Adyance 1a% and tax deducted at source{Net of Provision for tax) 4,713 96 376
Prepaid expenses 229 105 1318
17.281 45847 18,185
7. Trade reccivables
Asat As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
(Restated) (Restated)
Trade receivables considered good - Secured - - -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 28,793 26,128 26,062
Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 1,210 LI77 987
Trade Receivables - eredit impaired - - -
Total 30,003 27,305 27,049
Loss Allowance [Refer note (b) below] (1,210) (1,1TH {987)
Net Trade receivables 28,793 26,128 26,062

FRN: 0018878
No: 27,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TIN2Z017PLC119607

I Netes farming part of the consolidated financial statements

(Al amounlts arc in Indian Rupees 1akhs excepl share data and as staled)

() This amount includes amount feceiveble relating 10 the Invaices that have been booked in holding company and subsequently transferred from holding company % 692 {March 31, 2024: T 1,118, April 01, 2623:2 1,271)

and includes receivables from fellow subsidiary T Nil (March 31, 2024; T Nil, April 01, 2023; 2 54) . Alse refer note I (34).

(b) The activity in loss all for doubtful ivables is given below:
As at Asat Asal
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(Restated) {Restated)
Balance at the beginning of the year 1177 987 828
Add: Addiional provision during the year 150 300 200
Less: Bad debts writien off (1 {10 [C3)]
Balance at the end of the year ) 1210 1,177 987
The fullowing table presents the ageing of the Trade Receivables for the year ended March 31, 2025
Qutstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due| less thas 6 months - greater than Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
6 months 1 vear 3 vears
Trade recelvables - Undisputed )
Congidered good 21,043 2,327 - - - - 23,370
Which have significant increase in credit risk 166 17 6 4 600 417 1,210
Credit impaired - - - - - - -
21,20% 2,344 [ 4 s00 417 24,580
Trade receivables - Dispoted
Considered good - - - - - - -
Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Provision for DDoubtful Debts (1,210)
Trade receivahle - Unbilled 5,421
Total 28,793
The following table presents the ageing of the Trade Receivables for the year ended March 31, 2024
Out ding for following perlods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due| less than 6 manths - greater than Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
6 manths 1 year 3 vears
Trade receivables - Undisputed
Considered good 19,998 1,328 . - - . 21,327
Which have sighificant increase in eredit sk 248 14 2 &3 386 444 1,177
Credit impai - - - - - - -
20,247 1,342 2 X3 %6 d4d 12,504
Trade receivables = Disputed
Considered good - - - . - - -
‘Which have significunt increase In credit risk - - - - - . -
Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Pravisien for Doubtful Debts (1,177}
Trade receivable - Unbilled 4,801
Total 26,128
The following takle presents the ageing of the Trade Receivables as at April O], 2023
O ding for fallawing periods fram due date of payment
Particnlars Net due| less than 6 months - greater than Total
12 years 2-3 ycars
6 menths 1 year 3 years
Trade receivahles - Undisputed
Considered good 15,554 5,523 - - - . 21477
‘Which have significant increase in credit risk 333 48 0 51 304 241 987
Credit impaired - - - - - - -
15,487 5,971 10 51 EIT) 241 22,464
Trade receivables - Disputed
Considered good - - - - - - .
Which have significant increase in creditrisk - - - - - - -
Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Provisien for Doubtful Debts (987)
Trade receivable - Unbilled 4,585
Total 24,062

FRN: 001997S
No: 27,

Abiramapuram,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC119607
. Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statcments

8. Cash and Bank balances

BA. Cash and cash cquivalents:

Balance with banks
(i) incumrent accounts
(ii) deposits with origisal mamrities less than three
months

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statcment:
Cash and cash equivalents as above

Less: Bunk averdrafl wsed for cash manzagement purposes [Refer note 16 {e)]

8B. Other bank balances:

() Bank deposits [Refer Note below]
(il) Deposits with maturity of' mere than three manths but less than twelve months

Note
Balances in deposit accounts subjeet W lien in favour of banks for obtoining bank puarantees fletier of credits/borrowings.

9. Other financial assets

Amounts receivable from fellow subsidiaries [Refer note (a) betow]
Security deposits [Net of doubtiul allowance] {Refer note (h) helaw]
Interest acerusd on deposils

Derivative financial instrument
Other Receivables

Note;

A)

(B)

(A)+ (@)

(All amounts are in [ndian Rupees lakhs cxcept share data and as stated)

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
{Restated) {Restated)
29,694 5,828 5,902
- 7,000 11,500
29,694 12,828 21,402
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
20,694 12,828 21,402
- - (3.335)
29,694 12,828 13067
Asat As at As al
March 31, 2025 March 3, Hi24 April 01, 2023
(Restated) (Restated)
3,553 3,476 7,511
. 12.887 -
3.553 16,363 7,511
33.247 29,11 28.914
3,553 3,476 7512
Asal Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
{Restated) {Restated)
8 32 -
359 24 56
573 602 219
183 270 355
- 488 -
1.125 1416 63D

a) T & (March 31, 2024: T 32, April 01, 2023 :T Nil ) receivable from fellow subsidiary on account of transfer of assetsfliabilitics, transfer of revenue and expenses, customer receipts received and vendor payments made
hy the parent pany / lellow subsidiary campany pertaining to the services rendered by and for the company. Also refer note D (34),

b) The activity in allewunce for doubtful depesits are given below:

Balance at the beginaing of the year
Add: Additional provision during the year
Halance at the end of the year

10, Other current assets

Balances with GST, service 1ax and sales tax avthorities

Prepaid expenses

Advance tax and tax deducted at squrce (Net of Provision for Tax)
Deferred Cantract Cast

Orther advances

Refer Note D (38) for the movement in Contract cost.

Subramaniam §1.,
Abiramapurzm,
Chennaai-18.

As at As at Asat
March 3, 125 March 31, 2024 April U1, 2023
(Restated) {Restated)
34 16 G
- 18 10
34 k[ 14
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
{Restated) (Restated)
7,382 5345 4,755
323 1 188
- 3,522 1,702
1,073 L0717 731
764 13 194
%343 10,231 7,570




Sify Infialt Spaces Limited
CIN:U74%99TN2017PLCI 195607
D, Nates forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{All ameunts are in Indian Rupces Iakhs except sharc data and as stated)

11. Equity Share Capital

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
{Restated (Restated
Authorized
£0,02,50,000 (March 31, 2024 & April 01,2023: 80,00,00,000) equity shares of 210 each, 20,025 80,000 80,000
. 27,060 27,000 27,000
27,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024 & April 01,2023: 27,00,00,000) preference sharzs of 210 each
Issued
51,01,31,127 (March 31, 2024 & April 01,2023: 50,58,59,762) equity shares of 210 each 50,585 50,386 50,500
Increase on uccount of Merger (refer note (2) & (d) below) 427 0 86
51.H3 50,586 50,586
Subscribed and fully paid
51,01,31,127 (March 31,2024 & Merch 31,2023; 5(,58,59,762} cquity shares of 210 each fully puid up 51,013 50,586 50,586
51,013 50,586 50,586

(a} The Company has two classes of suthorised share capital iig., vquity shares and preference shares having u par value of 210 per share,
{b) Equity shares carcy voting rights propertionatc to the paid-up value per share. In ihe event of liquidation of the company, holders of the equity shares are entitled 10 be repaid the amounts credited as paid up on those
equity shares. All surplus assets after settlement of liahililies and preference share capital as at the commencement of winding-up shall be paid to the holders of caquily shares in proportion 10 their sharcholdings. The above
nayment is subject to the rights of creditors, employecs, 1axes, if any, and any other sums as may be prescobed under the Companies Act, 2013.
(<) Consequent (0 the scheme of amalgamation between Sify Iniinit Spaces Limited and Print House (Inia) Privale Limited, the authorized equity share capital of the Company stands mereased from 78,00,00,000 equity
shares of 210/- cach, agpregaling lo 78,00,00.000 10 89,00,00,000 ¢quity shazes of 210/- cach apgregating to € 80,000 and the anthorised preference share capital of the Company stands increased from 22,00,00,000
" preference shares of 10/~ each aggreyating to 22,00,00,000 1o 27,00,00,000 preference shares of 200/~ each aggregating 1o 127,000, The Company in accordance with the scheme of smalgamation has allotted
20.0859762 equity shares of the company of L0V- each aggregating to 8,59,762 shares to shan holders of transferor company for every 1 equity shares of 210/ each held by them.(refer note D(41}).
(d) Consequent (o the scheme of smalgamation between Sify Infinit Spaces Limited and Patel Auto Enpineering Company (India) Privaie Limited, the authorized equity share capital al the Compaiy stands increased from
80,00,00,000 equity shares of )0/~ cach, aggregating 1o 80,00,00,000 10 80,02,50,000 equity shares of 0% cach ageregating 10 T 80,025 and the authorised preferencs share capital of the Company 27,00,60,000
prefenmee shares of 20/~ each aggregaling to 227,000, The Company, in scordance with the scheme of amalgamation has allotted 17.08546 equity shares of the company of 10/ cach agpregating to 42,71,365 shares 1o
share holders of ransferor company for every 1 equity shares of 10/- cach held by them. (refer note B(éa)).

1.1 Recanciliation of number of shares in the beginning and at the end of the period

As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024 (Restated} As at Apri) 0i, 2023 {Restated)
Number of Amount Number of shares Amaunt Number of shares Amount
shares paid- up paid- up paid- up
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 50,58,59,762 50,586 50,58.59,762 50,586 §0,50,00,000 50,500
Add: On account of merper (refer siole D(41)& B(6a)) 4271,365 427 - - £.59.762 B&
Number of shares autstanding 11 the end of the year 51,01,31,127 81,013 50,58,59,762 50,586 50,58,59,762 50,586
11.2 Shareholders halding mare than 5% of the shares of the Campany:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 (Restated As at April 01, 2023 (Restated)
Number of % Number of Shares held % Number of Sharcs %
Shares held holding helding held holding
Sify Technalogies Limiled* 51.01,31.127 0% 50,58,59,762 100% 50,58,59,762 100%

*Includes 8 (March 31, 2024 & April 01, 2023 ; 8) shares held by nominees of Sify Technulugics Limited (Holding Company} to cornply with the provisions of the Compunies Act, 2013

11.3 Shareholding of Promoters

Equity shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2025

Na. of sharcs Percentapc oftotal  Percentage of change Fercentage of change
Name of the promoter shares during the period  during the period
Sify Technologies Limited 51.01.31.127 100% - -
Total 51,01,31,127 100% - -
Equity shares held by premoters as at March 31, 2024 .

No. of share Pereentape of total  Pereentage of change Percentage of change
Name of the promeder : shares during the perlod during the period
Sify Technolopies Limited 50,58,59,762 * 100% . -
Total 30,58,59,762 100% - -
Equity shares held by promaters as at April #1,2623

No. of shares Percentage of total  Percentage of change Percentage of change
Name of the promoter shares during the period  during the peried
Sify Technologics Limited 50,58,59,762 100% - -
Total 50,58,59,762 100% - -

Subramamarm St.,
Abirarapuram
Chennan- 18




Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN20 TPLC119607
D, Notes forming part of the lidated i ial

11.4 Aggregate number of equity shares {ssued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years Immediately preceding the reporting date:

4) The Company allored 50,00,00,000 equiry shares a5 fully paid up shares on January 28, 2021 through business transfer agreement. )
) The Company alloticd 8,59,762 cquily shares as fully paid up shares on April 1, 2022 on account of merger order dated July 10,2023 with ¢ffect from April 01,2022,
<} The Company allotied 42,71,365 equity shares as fully paid ups shares on April 1, 2023 on accounl of merger order dated Tanuary 09,2024 with effect from April 01,2023,

11.3 Shares reserved for isswe
The Company has shares reserved for issue as on March 31, 2025 wowards C )

Redegmable Preference shares of Sify Data and Managed Services Limited issued to Sify Teck

12. Other Equity

12.1 Reserves and surplus

Retalned earnings

Batance at the beginning of the year
.Ad]ustments:

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Dividend paid on Non-Cumulative Compulsetily Convertible Preference Shares
Balance at the end of the year

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/asset

Balarice al the beginning of the year

Add: Additions during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year

Merger of PABCIPL (refer note C(i))

Add; Additions during the year {Premium on Non convertible debentures)
Balance af Lhe end of the year

Capital Reserve

Balance at the beginning ol the year

Add: Additions during the yar

Ralance at the cnd of the year

Share pending allotment (refer note c{ii))

12.2 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
Balunce at the beginning of the year

Add: Additinns during the year

Balance atthe end of the year

12.3 Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares
Balance al the heginting of the year

Add: Additions during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Nature and purpose of Reserves
a) Retained Earniogs

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

Retained enrnings represents accumulated undistributed profits of the Company that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its cquity share holders.

b) Remeasurement of defined benelit lability £ asset

Remeasurement of defined benefis liakility fasset eepresent the cumulative actuarial gain £ loss

c} Securities premium

(i) Securities Premium used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(ii) The Company received an order for merger of Patel Auto Engineering Company (India) Private Limited ("PAECIPL") on January 09, 2025,

ible Dt (D 12(g)), Non-C ily Co ible Prefe shares [ 12()] and Nor-Cumulative
ies Limited with a fon ratic of 0.099.
As al Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2025 March 3, 2024 April 01, 2023
{Restated) (Restated)
31,515 22,190 12,521
12,636 9,325 9,669
(225) -

{A) 43,926 31,515 22,190
(83) an (28}
23) (12) {43}

(B) (106) (83) n

3,766 3,760 -

3,766

58 - -

(] kX3 3,766 1,766

914 914 914

m) 914 oI4 914

(E) - 427 427

62,693 18,074

6,819 44,619 18,074

Ly} 69,512 62,693 18,074

5,000 - -

- 5,000 -

G) 5,000 5,000 N
(H) = (APHBYHCYHDHEHFHG) 1,23,070 1,04,232 45,300

giized in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

The Company will issue and aliot 1708546 equity shares of the Company for every one equity share held in PAECII'L. The Company issued 42,71,365 share of T 10% each to the Sharcholders ef PAECIPL amounts to

7427 and dingly recognised a ities premium of T 3,737 (refer notz B(6a)),

dy Capital Reserve

The Company has received order for merger of Print bouse (India) Private Limiled ("FHIPL") on July 10, 2023.The Company issued 8,59,762 share al T 10/~ cach 10 St

accordingty recognised a capital reserve of 2 914 lukhs (refer note D(41))

'
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D. Notes forming part of the lid fis ial stat t

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share dala and as stated)
¢) Compulsarily Convertible Debentures

As at As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 224 April 01,2023
{Restated) (Reseated)
C lserily Converible Deb issned 10 Kotk Speeial Situations Fupd 23,135 23,135 18,292
Ci {sarily Conventible Det issued 1o Kotak Data Center Fund 34,058 27,239 -
Compulsorly Convertible Debentures jssued 10 Sify Techonologies Limited 12319 12319 6,782
69,512 62,693 18,074

Kotak Special Situations Fund ("KSSF™):

During the 2021-2022 fiscal ycar, pursuani to Debenture Subscription Agreement (“DSA"™) dated November 1, 2021, KSSF subseribed to (i) 2,00,00,000 Scries 1 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (the “Series 1
CCDs") with a face value of T 100 ¢ach, amounting to % 20,000 in Series 1 CCDs and (ii) 1% ol 2,00,00,000 Scrics 2 Compulsorily

Convertible Debentures (“Series 2 CCDs") with a face value of 2 100 cach, amounting to Z 200 in Scries 2 CCDs, in each case, issued by SISL.

During the 2022-2023 fiscal year, KSSF subscribed 1o an additional 1,98,00,000 Series 2 CCDs with a face value of ¥ 100 cach, amounting to an additional 2 19,800 in Serics 2 CCDs issued by SISL.

The canversion ratio for CCDs is determined based on the equity valuation of the next financial year following the financial year of drawdown of CCD monzy.

‘The Company fixer the conversion ratio of 0.8112 and 0,8078 for the Series 1 and Series 2 CCDs fespectively pursuant to the formula provided in the DSA.

Cm July 20, 2023, SISL entered inte an assignment letter with KSSF for the transfer of € 60,060 to Kotak Data Centre Fund (“KDCF™),

The Series 1 CCDs and Serics 2 CCDs carry o coupon rate of 6% per anmum, payuble half-ycarly. These CCDs shall be fully, mandatorily and compulsorily converted into equity shares by October 1,2031, as provided for
in the DA,

These CCDs are backed by Put Cption Ag from Sify Techonologies Limited.

These CCDs are secured by a secondary charge over identified movable assets of Data Center facility.

Sify Techoologies Limited (ST

During financial year 2021-22, pursuzat to Debenture Subscription Agreement (“DSA") dated March 29, 2022, the holding company, Sify Technologies Limited svhseribed te 1,00,00,000 unsecured Compulsority
Convertible Debentures (CCD3) with face valug of ¥ 100 each amounting to T 10,000 {"Tzanche 1.

During the financial year 2022-23,pursuant to an Assignment Agreement dated March 20, 2023 the Company issued 22.50,000 unsecured CCI} 10 holding company Sify technologies Limited a5 a consideration for
transfer of Investments in Tasoula Energy Private Limited ("Tranche [I*).

In addition during financial yeur 202223, pursuant 1a a Dehenlure Subscription Agreement ("DSA™) dated March 29, 2023, the helding campaty, Sify Technologies Limited subscribed to 1,00,00,000 wizecured
Compulserily Convertible Debentures (CCDs) with face vatue of 2 100 cach amewnting ta T 10,000 {"Tranche I11"},

The conversion ratio for CCDs is determined based en the equity valuation of the next financial year following the financial year of drwdown of CCD money.

The Company fixed the conversion ratio of 0.8112 for the Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 CCDs and 0.8078 for the Tranche 3 CCDs pursuant to the formuta provided in the DSA.

The Tranche 1, Tranche 2 and Tranche 3 CCDs carry a coupon rate of 6% per anum, payable half-yearly. These CCDs shall be fully, mandatorily and compulsorily converted into equity shares by March 27, 2032,

October 20, 2032, March 29, 2033 respectively, as provided for in the DSA.
Kotak Data Center Fund (“KDCF");

During the 2023.24 fiscal year, pursuant to Debenture Subscription Agreement (“Second DSA™), dated July 20, 2023, KDCF subscribed to 4,80,00,000 Series 4 Compulsorily Convertible Deb (“Series 4 CCDs™)
with & face value of T 100 cach, amounting to % 48,000 in Series 4 CCDs. The conversion ratio was fixer) at 0.5434 pursuant 10 the Second DSA.
During the 2023-2024 fiscal year, KDCF subscribed ta 1,20,00.000 Series 5 Comy ily Convertible Deb (“Scrics § CCDs™) with a face value of 2 100 cach, amounting to ¥ 12,000 in Series 5 CCDs.

“The Company fixed the conversion mtic of 9.9834 for the Series 5 CCDs pursuant 1o the farmula provided in the DSA during the year ended March 31, 2025,
The Series 4 CCDs and Series 5§ CCDs carry a coupen ratke of 6% per annum, payuble half-yeazly. These CCDs shall be fully, mandatorily and compulsarily converted it vquity shares by March 31, 2033, us provided in
the Second DSA.

These CCDs are sceured by a secondary charge over identified movable assets of Data Center facilily.

t) Noo-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

During the Financial Year 2020-2], Print House (Indix) I'rivaie Limited had issucd Y% Nan-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 1o Raju Vegesna Infotech & Industries Pvi Lid., {RVIPL) on private placement
basis. Thy Pruftmemee share capital ere radeemsble ot par value ot maturity, e, 20 years from the date of allotment. On account of merger, Sify Infinit Spaces Limited agreed to issuc the 9% Non-Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares to Raju Vegesna infolech & Industries Pvi L1d on private placement basis. The Preference share capital are redeemable at par value at maturity, i.c. 17 years from the date of allotment. The terms of the
Prefercnce Shares are changed ta 6% Non-Cumulutive compulsorily convertible preference shares during the year 2023-24, During the year 2024-25, these shans were transferred from RVIPL to Sify Technalogies
Limited.

The Company fixed the conversion ratio of 0.0811 for the 6% Non-Cumulative compulsorily converrisle p shares. A Jingly these are § as d financial instruments and accounted as other
equity.

FRN: 03159/
No 27, .
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D. Noles ferming part of the i financial

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except sharc dala and as stated)

E3. Borrowings

As at As at As ot
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2624 Aprll 01, 2023
{Restated) (Restated)

Secured
Term laan from barks [Refer Note {a) and (b) below] 118432 1,14,501 R1,300
6% p.a. Compulsorily Cenvertible Deb; [Refer Note 12(¢) abave] 31,429 42,183 26,173
8.95% p.e. Non Convertible Debentures [Refer Note () below] 25,000 - -
From others [Refer Note (a) below] 27,817 3.208 187
Unsecured
6% p.a. C Isorily Convertible Det [Refer Note 12 {e) sbove] 7,004 7,964 14,321
6% Nen-Cumulative Compulserily Convertble Preference Shares [Refer Note (h) below] - - 5,000
Loan from holding company [Refer Note (d) below] - 2,080 1,750
Loan from fellow subsidiary [Refer Note (e} below] - 900 L000

2,09,772 1,70.836 1.2%.731

a. Of the above, facilitics amounting to 2 1,63,48 (March 31, 2024: % 1,38,376, April 01, 2023: 237,387) by the Company are primarily secured by way of a pari-passu charge on the projest Reccivables and charge on
movable fixed assets disbursed for the Bpecific DC Project. Out of this, T 3,067 (March 31, 2024: 3,208, April 03, 2023; 21£7) is Joan availed from others (NBFC).OT the above, the facility amounting 1o ¥ 25,000 (Murch
31,2024: T NIL, April 01, 2023: T NIL ) has been utiliscd for part-refinancing of existing Term Debt for Specific DC Project on 2nd April 2025, -

b. During the FY 2020-21, the compaty hus entered into External Commercial Borrowing {ECB) facility agreement for 55 Million and drawn down $5 Million out of sanctioned loan during FY 2020-21 and repaid § 0.5
Million in FY 2021-22, § | Million in FY 2022-23, 5 1 Million in FY 2023-24 & § 1 Million in FY 2024-25. The Company has also eatered into agreament for currency swap (frem USD to 3) 1o fully hedge foreign
currency exposure towards principal repayment and interest rate swap from floating to fixed in order 1o hedge the foreipn curreny expasure.

¢. Listed Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) facilily issued for re-financing the existing debt for specific Data Centre Towers amounting 1o T 25,000 (March 31, 2024 & Aprl 01, 2023; T NIL) by the Company is
primarily secured by way ol pari-passu charge on the project Receivables and charge on movable fixed assets.

d.The Company has repaid the unsecured term oan of T 2080 teccived from its holding company at an interest rate ol 7% p.a during the FY 24-25,

e.The Company has repaid the unsecured term loan of T $00 received from its fellow subsidiary at an interest rate of 7% p.a during the FY 24-35,

L The current maturilies of the above bormowings, carrying the aforesaid security and repayment torms are grouped under Note D (16).

h.During the FY 2020-21, Print Heuse (Indla) Pyt Ltd had issaed 9% Cumulative Non-Convenible Redeemahle Preference Shares to Raju Vepesna [nfotech & Industries Pvi Lid,,(RVIPL) en private placement basis. The
Proference share capital are redeemable at par value at maturity, i.c. 20 years from the dale of allatment. The terms of the Preference Shares are changed to 6% Non-Cumulative compulsarily conventible prelerence shares
during the year 2023-24. During the year 2024-25, these shares were wunsferred from RVIPL 1o Sify Technologies Limited.

14. Provisions

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2824 April 01, 2023

iRestated) (Restated)

Brovisions for employee henefits - non-corrent

Compensatzd absences 99 12 54
Graluity [Refer nole D (32)] 16 29 [
(A) 115 51 60

Provisions for emplayee henefits - eurrent
Compensated absences 30 72 17
(B) 30 12 17
(A) +(B) 145 123 il

15. Other nan-current Jiabilities

As st As ar Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2623
Secaority Deposit 360 360 360
' 360 360 360
16, Borrewings (shert-term)
As at As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 01, 2023
(Restated) (Restated)
Loans repayable on demand from banks — Sceured [Refer notes (a) 1o (&) below]
Waorking capital facilities - 2,795 11,075
Loans repayable on_demand from banks — Unsegured
Leans and advances from Relaled Parties - - 11
Current maturities of Long Term Loans
Current maturitics of long term debt* 22,043 25,195 18,349
22,043 27.950 19,235

* Refer nole D (13)

Z(cHennl1a)

)
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1. Notes forming part of the idated fi ial

(All atsounts are in Indian Rupecs lakhs excepl share data and as stated)

(@) The above facilitics amounting to T Nil (previous year 2 2,795), non fund limits (including bank guarantees) availed by the Company are primarily secured by way of pari-passu charye on the entire current assets of the

Company to all working capital bankers under consortium.
(b} In addition to the above, out of these loans repayable on demand from banks,

(i) Outstanding ameunting to Z Nil (previous year € 2,795} is secured collaterlly by way of pari-p charge on the bered movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future,
(i) O ding &g ing to T Nil (previous year ¥ 2,795) is secured collaterally by way of equitable mortgage over the propertics at Tidel Park, Chennai, Vashi 6th floor, Vile Parle at Mumbai.
(5) These working capital facilities bear ineres: ranging from 8.00% p.a. to 9.30% p.a .(provions year: 8.00% p.a. 1o $.30% p.a.) and these facilitics are subject 1o renewal annually.

(d) Borrowings from banks is net off processing charges amounting to 478 (Previous year 2 3365)
{e) Working capilal [aeilities comprises the fellowing:

As al As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(Restated) {Restated)
Bunk overdraft - - 3,335
Other working capital facilities - 2.795 7,740
- 2,795 11,075
17. Trade payubles R
As af As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(Restated) {Restated)
Towards purchase of goods and services®
Undisputed Trade payables :
(4) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 327 9 55
(b) Totel cutstanding dues of creditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 20,121 13,823 9,398
20448 13914 5,453
* Includes :
(2} This amount include 2 19 (March 31,2024 & March 31,2023: T Nil) payable en account of the invoices that have been bouked in holding company and suhsequentl ferred and includes an amount of 2 3 {March

31,2024: T 21,March 31,2023: 2 2) payabls to fellow subsidiary.Also refer note D (34).

The following table presents the aging of the Trade payables for the year ended March 31, 2025

Outstanding for fallowing periods from the date of Invoice

Parliculars Icss than 1-2 years 2«3 years greater than Tatal
1 vear 3 years
Undisputed Trade payahics
(8) Total cutstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises* 127 - - 7
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors othet than micro enterprises and small 11,842 307 26 3 12,178
12,169 307 26 3 12,505
Dispuicd Trade payables =
(c) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
(&) Tutal outstanding dues af creditors other thun micro enterprises and small - - - - -
Trade Pavables - Unbilled 7843
Total 12,169 307 26 3 20,448
* Qut of the above, T 327 pestains ta MSME dues not more than 45 days as on March 31, 2025,
The following table presents the aging of the ‘Trade payables for the year ended March 31, 2024
Outstanding for fallowing periods from the date of Invaice
Particulars [ess than 1-2 years 2-3yoars greater than Total
1 year 3 vears
Undisputed Trade payables :
(a) Total ouistanding dues 1o micro enterprises and small enterprises* 91 - - - 91
(0] Total sutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 6,332 334 - 55 6721
6,421 334 - 55 6,812
Disputed Trade payahles ;
(c) Tolal outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
(d) Total ouistanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small - - - - -
Trade Pyyahles - Unhilled 7102
Total 6423 334 - 33 13.914

* Qul of the above, 291 pertains 10 MSME dues not more than 45 days 2s on March 31, 2024
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D. Notes forming part of the conselidated financial statements

(Al amounis are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as staied)

The fullowing table presents the ageing of the Trade payables as al April 01, 2023

Dutstanding for following periods from the date of Inveice

Particulars Iess than 1-2 years 23 years greater than Tota)
1 vear 3 years

Undisputed Trade payables :

(2) Totsl outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises® 55 - - - 55
() Total outstandisng dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 3,114 163 120 8 3411
3,169 169 120 g 3,466
Disputed Trade payables :
(¢} Tolal oulstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises . - - - -
(d) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small - - - - -
Trade Pavables - Unbilled 5.987
Total 3,169 169 120 8 9453

* Qut of the above, Y5 pertains to MSME dues not more than 45 days as on April 01, 2023

18. Other financinl Habwlitics

Asat As at Asat
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024 April 81,2023
(Restated) (Restated)
Amounis payable to fellow subsidiaries (Refer Note {a) helaw) - - 566
Amuunts payable to holding company (Refer Note (b) below) 1,390 954 1,550
Capitsl ereditors 1,578 9,576 6,453
Interest acerued (Refer Note (¢} below) 420 337 1,150
Other payables 2,486 - 1,971
7874 10867 11,810

a. {Nil (March 31, 2024 : Nil, April 01, 2021 :¥ 566) payable to [ellow subsidiary of the company on accoutit of transfet ol expenses, vendor payments made on behalf of the company.
b. 2 1,390 (March 31, 2024: T 954, April 01, 2023 : ]1590) is payable to holding company on account ol transkr of asscls/liabilities, transfer of revenue and expenses, customer receipls received and vendor payments
made by the parent uny / fellow subsidiary periaining to the services resdered by and [or the compatyy.

€. il (March 31, 2024: T 75, April 01, 2023;% 500 } is payable to Raju Vegesna Infolech & Industrics Pvi Lid on account issue of 9% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares on private placement basis.

19. Other curreat libilitics

As at Asat Asaut
March 31, H25 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(Restated) {Restated)
Advances received from customers. 29 21 24
Statulory payables 258 94 170
Contract Liability (Uneamned income)*® 3.553 33714 3426
Other payahles 132 98 258
Current x liabiity {(Net of Advanee wx paid} 1,534 - -
5.506 3,587 3,878

* Refer Note D (38) for the movement in Contract Hability (Uncamed income)

20, Cuntingent liabiities and commitments

{n) Contingent liabilities

The Compuny is subject to legal proceedings and claims which are arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company's matugement does net reasonably expect that these legal actions, when nltimately concluded and

determined, will have material and adverse effect on the Company's results af operations or financia! conditions. Further the Company has given Corporate Guarantee for the Term Luan outstanding amounting to 2 14,646
as on March 31, 2025 for SKVR Software Solution Pvt. Ltd. for Specific DC Profect to the lenders.

As at Asat As at
(k) Cupital commitments March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
{Restated) {Restated)
Esti d amount of remaining to be d on capital account and not provided for 62,329 13,899 88546
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D. Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

21. Revenue from operations

Service Revenue:
- Domestic

- Export

22, Other Income

Interest income
From banks
Others

Other non-operating income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equiprnent (Net)

Miscellaneous income

23. Cost of services rendered

Power expenses

Cther direct costs

24, Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds .

Staff welfare expenses

Share-based payments to employees

Subramaniam $1.,
Abiramapuram,

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

{Restated)
1,37,571 1,06,390
5,266 5,027
1,42,837 1.11,417

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2024
March 31, 202 y
arch 31, 2025 {Restated)
1,893 2,205
209 23
180 -
300 456
2,591 2,754

For the Year ended
March 31, 2025

For the Year ended
March 31, 2024

{Restated)
55,946 46,229
2,294 1,508
58,240 47,737

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2025 M?;::sf:t’ez')m
4,982 3,781
321 231
136 71
5 3
5,444 4,086
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D. Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

25. Finance costs

Interest Expenses™
Other finance costs

Interest on lease liability

For the Year ended

th
P Yaraes T
i (Restated)
11,714 8,693
774 611
2,793 2,701
15,281 12,005

* The Company has capitalised borrowing costs @ 9.30% p.a amounting to 5,153 and ¥5,140 for the years ended March 31, 2025 and

March 31, 2024.

26. Other expenses

Commission expenses
Communication expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes
Travelling expenses
Power and fuel expenses
Legal and professional
Payment to auditors

-For Statutory audit fees

- For Other services

- For reimbursement of expenses
Repairs and maintenance expenses

- Plant and machinery

- Buildings
- Others
Insurance
Qutsourced manpower costs

Advertisement, selling and marketing expenses

Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (Net)

Provision for doubtful advances

Contribution towards corporate social responsibility [Refer note D (37)]

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (refer note D(7) for bad debts written off)

Miscellangous expenses

* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company

FiIN: 0019975
No: 27,

:\ Subramaniam $t.,
Abiramapuram. *
Chennai-18.

For the Year ended

S
» (Restated)

< 10
- 13
741 465
1,043 414
222 172
454 313
729 693
18 13
. .
% *
2,442 1,556
820 698
5,873 5,288
378 227
274 274
148 400
26 306
i 30
i 18
220 217
150 300
1,880 1,961
15,750 13,373

U=
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D, Notey forming part of the cowsolidated financial stalements

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

27. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities and non-cash financing and investing activities for the year ended March 31, 2025
(i) Financing activities *

Non cash movement

As at Foreign . .
Particulars April 01, Proceeds Repayment exchange class::':ation Inferest r‘ﬂ(':;eﬁ(:;'l::;ns ! Marc:;al‘: 2025
2024 movement
Term loans from Bank and others 1,38,376 83,561 (54,318) (59) (4,073) - - 1,63,487
6% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 54,676 - (4,530) - (6,819) - - 43327
8.95% p.a. Non Convertible Debentures - 25,000 - - - - - 25,000
Term loans from Holding Company 2,080 - (2,080) - - - - -
Loan from fellow subsidiary 900 . (900) - - - - -
Working capital facilities excluding overdraft 2,795 (2,795) - - - - -
Lease Liabilities 26,034 (4.458) - - 2,793 2.872 30.241
Total liabilities from financing activities 2.27.861 1.08.561 (69,081) (59) (10.892) 2,793 2.872 2,62.055

*Borowings from banks is net off processing charges amounting to ¥ 3,068,

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities and non-cash financing and investing activities for the vear ended March 31, 2024 (Restated)

i) Financing acfivities *

Non cash movement

As. at Foreign " As at
Particulars April 01, Proceeds Repayment exchange ?le- . Interest Net ofAd.d:tmns.' March 31, 2024
2023 classification (Deletions)
(Restated) movement (Restated)
Term loans Grom Bank and Others 97,387 58,404 (17,32%) 240 (326) 1,38,376
6% Compulsorily Convertible Debentyres 42,743 60,000 (3,448) - (44,619) 54,676
6% Non-Cumulative Cotnpulsorily Convertible 5,000 - - - (5,000) -
Preference Shares #
Term loans from Holding Company 2,080 - - - - 2,080
Loan from fellow subsidiary 1,000 - (100} - - 00
Working capital facilities excluding overdraft 7,740 (4,945) 2,795
Lease Liabilities 23.3560 {4.112) 2701 7039 20.034
Total liabilities from financing activities 1.79.306 1.18.404 (29.934) 240 (40045} 2,701 7.08% 227.861
*Borrowings from banks is net off processing charges amounting to ¥ 1,577.
# The company has converted 9% Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference to 6% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares,
28. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The tax effects of significant temporary differences hat resulted in deferred tax asset/(liability) and a description of the items that created these differences is given below :
Recognised deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
As at As at Asat
March 31, March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
2025 {Restated) (Restated)
. Deferred tax assets on temporary deductible differences
Property, Plant and Equipment 7,390 6,084 3,780
Leases / Riglit of Use Assets 1,390 1,338 989
Provision for employee benefits 36 20 19
Allowances for doubtful debts 305 27 248
Provision for doubtful advances 9 9 4
Payment ta MSME Vendors 6 6 -
9.145 7.737 5,040
Deferred tax liabilifies on temporary taxable differences
Intangible assets 6 (8) 1)
Secutity Deposits - - -
6 (8) [4}]
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) recognised in Balance Sheet 9,151 1.729 5.039
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D. Nutes furuniug part of e cousvlidaied fuaucial sialements
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

In assessing the realizability of the deferred income tax assets, management congiders whether some portion or all of deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible, Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred
tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategy in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections of future taxable income over the
periods in which deferred tax assets are deductible, management recogmizes deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences to the extent of deferred fax liabilities on taxable tempotary

differences. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income are reduced.

Movement in temporary differences during current and previous year

Provision for Allowances for Provision for Property, Intangible Leases / Right of Payment to
employee  doubtful debts doubtful Plant and assets Use Assets & MSME Yendors
benefits advances Equipment Unwinding of
Interest
Balance as at April 1, 2023 (Restated) 19 248 4 3,780 ()] 989 -
Recognised in income statement 10 23 5 2,304 (€] 349 6
Recopnised in Equity . - . - - R
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) 29 271 9 6,084 (8) 1.338 6
Recognised in income statement 7 34 0 £,306 I4 61 [{1)]
Recognised in Equity - - - - - R
Balance as at March 31, 2025 36 305 9 7.390 6 1.399 6
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)
Current tax expense/ {reversal) 5,312 4,782
Defermed tax liability / (asset) (1.423) [2.689)
' 5,390 2,093
Reconciliation of effective tax rates
A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before taxes is
summarised below:
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)
Profit before taxes 18,026 11,418
Enacted tax rates in India 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax expense/(benefit) 4,537 2,874
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 1,031 {700
Reversal of previously recognised temporary differences (173) (81}
5,390 2,093
29, Payments to directors (other than Whole-time Director)
For the year For the year
eaded ended
March 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
{Restated)
Sitting fees 27 4
27 4
30. Reconciliation of equity shares in computing weighted average number of equity shares
(a) Weighted average number of shares
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2025  Mar 31, 2024
{Restated)
Issued fully paid up ordinary shares as on April 1, 50,58,59,762 50,58,59,762
Issued as fully paid up in consideration for merger 2,22,345 -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share 50,60,82,107 50,58,59,762

FRN: 0015975
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D. Noutes furming part of the consolidated finanvial statenenis

(b) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating Basic Earnings Per Share (BEFPS):

Net profit as per profit and loss account

less: Dividend paid on Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share

Basic Earnings per share

Diluted Earnings per share *

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees iakhs except share data and as stated)

For the year
ended
March 31, 2025

For the year
ended
Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)

12,636
(225)
12,411

2.45
2.41

* Since above effect is anti- dilutive the Diluted Earnings per Shares is resiricted to Basic Earnings per Share for the year ended March 31, 2024,
Since the convertiable instruments are issued based on the ranking of the instrumeant Diluted eamings per share are caluculated based on the mnking of the convertible instrument.

31. Foreign currency exposure
The details of foreign curmency exposure as at March 31, 2025 are as follows:

9,325

9,325

1.84
1.84

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

Foreign Currency

Amount in foreign currency

Amount in Indian Rupees

Amounts receivable in foreign currency on account of

Cash and bank balances

USb

Trade Receivables

UsD

23

1,938

Amounts payable in foreign currency on actount of:

Foreign currency long term loan

USb

1.284

* amouat is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company

The details of foreign cusrency exposure as at March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 (restafed)

Foreign Currency

Amount in foreign currency

Amount in Indian Rupees

Amounts recejvable in foreign currency on account ofi

Cash and bank balances

UsD

Trade Receivables

usD

27

2,233

Armpunts payable in foreign currency on account of:

Foreign currency long term loan

UsSD

25

2.084

32. Employee benefits
a. Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation (Gratuity)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
. March 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
{Restated)
Projected beneit obligation at the beginning of the year 207 177
Service cost 42 31
Interest cost 15 13
Remeasurement (gain)/losses 24 12
Benefits paid (32) (26)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 256 207
Change in the fair value of plan assets
For the year For the year
. ended ended
Particulars March 31,2025 | Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)

Fair value of plan assets at the beyinning of the year 178 172
Interest income 13 13
Employer contributions 80 20
Benefits paid (32) (26)
Return on plan assets. excluding amount recogmised in net interest expense 1 (1)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 240 178

FRN- 0016378
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Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

{All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 25§ 207
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (240) (178)
Funded status amount of liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 16 29
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year For the year
Ny ended ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)
Service cost 42 31
Interest cost 15 13
Interest income (13) ayn
Summary of actuarial assumptions
For the year For the year
i ended ended
Particulars Mareh 31,2025 |  Mar 31, 2024
(Restated)
Discount rate 6.65% 7.15%
Salary escalation rate 3.00% 8.00%
Averagé future working life time 21.5] years 21.02 vears

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of Indian governinent securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated

term of the obligations.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the infiation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

The expected cash flows over the next few years are as follows:

As at
Year March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
(Restated)
1 year 48 42
2 to 5 years 168 136
& to 10 years 95 78
More than 10 years 19 34
Plan assets: The Gratuity plan's weighted-average asset allocation at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, by asset category is as follows;
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Funds managed by insurers 100% 100%
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Remeasurement (gain) /loss arising from
- change in demographic assumptions - -
- change in financial assumptions 5 1
. - experience variance 19 10
- return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense/income (1) 1
23 12

2
D.z- FRN-G0199,S
= Mo 27,

S-a. Subrarmaniam 8t
* Abiramapuram
Cheanai 18




Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:U74999TN2017PLC115607
D. Notes furming part of the consolidated finaucial statemenls
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions

Significant actarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salaty increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the ead of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 (Restated)

Decrease Inerease Deerease Increasc
Discount rate {-/+ 1%) 267 246 216 199
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 4.3% (3.9%% 4.2% (3.9)%
Aftrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates) 270 247 213 203
(% change cotnpared to base due to sensitivity) 52% (3.8)% 2.6% {2.2)%
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates) 256 256 207 207
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) . 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Salary Growth rate (-/+ 1%) 249 264 201 214
{%6 change compared to base due to sensitivity) (3.0)% 3.1% (3.00% 3.1%

b. Contributions to defined contribution plans

In accerdance with Indian law, all employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is 2 defined contribution plan. Both the employee and employer make monthly contributions to the plan,
each equal to a specified percentage of employse’s basic salary. The company has no further obfigations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions, An amount of % 248 and 2 189 was
contributed for (he year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively,
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupces lakhs except share data and as stated)

33, Segment reporting .

The Company is in the business of providing Data Center scrvices te clients which is the primary segment. As such, the Company’s financial results arc largely reflective of the Data
Center services business and accordingly there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, based on review by Chief Operating Decision Makers
(CODM).

Major Custemer

Revenue from three customers of Data center services represents approximately 3 98,762 (March 31,2024 Z 70,853) of the company's total revenue,

34, Related parties and transactions

{a) Related parties
The related parties where conirol / significant influence exists are subsidiaries and associates, Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director whether executive ar otherwise. Key management personnel includes the board

of directors and other senior management executives. The other related parties are those with whom the Company has had transaction during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March
31, 2024 are as follows:

Particulars Related Parties Country of % of ownership
Incorporation interest
Ultimate Holding Company Ramanand Core Invesiment Company Private Limited India
(subsidiary of Raju Vegesna Infotech and Industries Private
Limited)
Helding Company Sify Technologies Limited India 100%
Associate Company SKVR Software Solution Private Limited India 49%
Fellow Subsidiaries Sify Technologies (Singapore) Pte. Limited - Singapore
Sify Technologies North America Corporation USA
Sify Data and Managed Services Limited India
Sify Digital Services Limited India
Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Ramanujan V (Till October 21, 2024
Mr. Ganesh Sankararaman (effective October 22, 2024)# s
Mr. C.R. Rao
Mr. D J Poornasandar
Trust controlled by KMP of Holding Company## Raju Vegesna Foundation India

#Mr. Ganesh Sankararaman appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of the Company effective October 22, 2024, due to relinquishment by Mr.V Ramanujan.

(b) Related party transactions and balances
Following is a summary of related party transactions:

March 31, 2025

Sify Technologies  Sify Digital o <" software - Sify Data and

Transactions - X . Solution Private Managed Services Key Management
Limited Services Limited Limited Ltd Personnel

Lecase rentals received 20 132 - - -
Lease rentals to holding company** 2,277 - - - -
Lease Rent Paid - - 200 - -
Loan Given - - 15,700 - -
Rendering of services# 303 574 - - -
Interest Received - - 111 . -
Investment in preference shares - - 9,900 - -
Revenue transfer* 1,189 - - - -
Expenses transfers* 3,269 146 - . -
Repayment of Capital advance - - 36,069 - .
Interest paid on Loan Received 134 - - 61 -
Interest paid on CCDs 1,335 - - - -
Repayment of Capital advance - - - - .
Loan Repaid*** 2,080 - - 900 -
Assets transfer 319 - - 1,085 -
Salaries and other short term benefits **¥¥ - - - - 25
Contributions to defined contribution plans **** - - - - 1
Amount of outstanding balances

Amount Payable {19 3 - - -
Amount Receivable 692 - - - -
Advance receivable/{payable) (1,390} 8 - - -
Capita) advance Quistanding . - - - -
Loan receivable/(payable) Net - - 15,700 - -
Security Depaosit 345 - - - -
Issue of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures##f 22,250 - - - -
Quistanding preference shares - - 14,900 - -
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)
*On account of Business Transfer agreement executed during FY 2020-21, the customer and vendor contracts novation was in progress during the year ended March 31, 2025 and hence
the invoices related to vendor and customer pertaining to the company have been booked in parent / fellow subsidiary company and subsequently transferred to subsidiary companies as

expense and revenue transfers. The Expenses Transfer from Sify Technologies Limited for the FY 2024-25 includes % 65 of KMP remuneration cresscharged to the Company. (refer
note D (7), D (17) and D (18)).

**During the year 2020-21, the Company had entered into a lease agreement with its parent Sify Technologies Limited, to lease the premises at Chennai, Noida and Hyderabad owned by
the holding company for a period of ten years effective April 1, 2020 on a rent of Z 7.20 (Rupees Seven lakhs Twenty Thousand), ¥ 57.37 (Rupees Fifty Seven Lakhs Thirty Seven
Thousand) & % 50.32 (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Thirty twa thousand) respectively per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year and refundable security
deposit equal to the rent of three months on all the said properties.

**During the year 2022-23, the Company had entered into a lease agreement with its parent Sify Technologies Limited, to lease the additional floors and to terminate existing 3rd fioor at
Hyderabad owned by the holding company for a period of five years effective January 1, 2023 on a rent of T 64.65 (Rupees Sixty four lakhs sixty five Thousand) and ¥ 11.73 (Rupees
Eleven lakhs Seventy threeThousand) respectively , per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year and refundable security deposit equal to the rent
of three months,

**During the year 2023-24, the Company had entered into 2 lease agreement with its parent Sify Technologies Limited, to lease the additional Space in Chennai Tidel DC for a period of
ten years effective April 1, 2023 on a rent of T 6.37 (Rupees Six lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand) per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year .

ek Refer Note D (13) ]

%+ Represents salaries and other benefits of Key Management Personnel comprising of Mr. Poorna Sandar D J (Company Secretary) only. Other KMP's remuneration are included in
Expense transfer. . :

#Pursuant te agreement for shared services between entities, SISL is charging to STL and SDSL for the services rendered.

## 2148 (Previous Year :¥ 202) contributed to Raju Vegesna Foundation, Visakapatanam which is controlled by KMP of holding company.

##H# Out of above T 22,250 CCDs 212,319 is classifiied as other equity {refer note D (12

| March 31, 2024 (Restated) ] ]
. Sify Technologies Sify Digital SKV}.{ Soft\‘vare Sify Data anfl Key Management
Transactions . . A Solution Private Managed Services
Limited Services Limited L. Personnel
Limited Litd

Lease rentals received 20 - - - -
Lease rentals to holding company** 2,362 - - - -
Rent Received - 132 - - -
Rendering of services# 303 574 - - -
Investment in Associate - - 1,960 - -
Investment in preference shares - - 3,000 - -
Revenue transfer* ' 1,131 - - - -
Expenses transfers* 4,273 132 - - -
Interest paid on Loan Received | 63 - - 64 -
Interest paid on CCDs 1,335 - - - -
Captital advance given - - - 16,397 - -
Assets transfer 5 - - - -
Security Deposit Transfer . 10 13 - - -
Salaries and other short term benefits *%** - - - - 21
Contributions to defined contribution plans **** - - - - 1
Amount of outstanding balances
Amount payahle 958 21 - - -
Arnount receivable 1,118 - - . -
Advance receivable/payable - 20 - - -
Capital advance Qutstanding - - 35,132 - -
Loan Qutstanding 200 - - 900 -
Lease Deposit 345 - - . -
Issne of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures#i# : 22,250 - - - -
QOntsianding preference shares - - 5,000 - -

*Om account of Business Transfer agreement executed during FY 2020-21, the customer and vendor contracts novation was in progress during the year ended March 31, 2024 and hence
the invoices related to vendor and custemer pertaining to the company have been bocked in parent / {ellow subsidiary company and subsequently transferred to subsidiary companies as

expense and revenue transfers. The Expenses Transfer from Sify Technologies Limited for the FY 2023-24 includes ¥ 56 of KMP remuneration cross-charged to the Company (refer note
D (7), D (17} and D (18)}.

**During the year 2020-21, the Company had entered into a lease agreement with its parent Sify Technologies Limited, to lease the premises at Chennai, Noida and Hyderabad owned by
the holding company for a period of ten years effective April 1, 2020 on a rent of T 7.20 (Rupees Seven lakhs Twenty Thousand), ¥ 57.37 (Rupees Fifty Seven Lakhs Thirty Seven
Thousand) & ¥ 50.32 (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Thirty two thousand) respectively per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year and refundable security
deposit equal to the rent of three months on all the said praperties.

**During the year 2022-23, the Company had entered inte a lease agreement with its parent Sify Technologies Limited, to lease the additional floors and to terminate existing 3rd floor at
Hyderabad owned by the holding company for a period of five years effective Janvary §, 2023 on a rent of ¥ 64.63 (Rupees Sixty four lakhs sixty five Thousand) and ¥ 11.73 (Rupees
Eleven lakhs Seventy thre¢Thousand) respectively , per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year and refundable security deposit equal to the rent
of three months.

**Diuring the year 2023-24, the Company had entered into a lease agreement with its pareni Sify Technologies Limited, to lease the additional Space in Chennai Tidel DC for a peried of
ten yeass effective April 1, 2023 on a rent of T.6.37 (Rupees Six lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand) per month with an escalation of 3% on the last paid rent after the end of every year .

%% Represents salaries-and other benefits of Key Management Personnel comprising of Mr. Poorna Sandar D J (Company Secretary) only. Other KMP's remuneration are included in
Expense transfer.
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupecs lakhs except share data and as stated)
#Pursuant to agreement for shared services between entities, SISL is charging to STL and SDSL for the services rendered,

#4 3202 (Previous Year :¥ 30) contributed to Raju Vegesna Foundation, Visakapatanam which is controlled by KMP of holding company.
#itt Out of above T 22,250 CCDs ¥ 12,319 is classifiied as other equity (refer note D {12))

(¢} Associate Stock Option Plan

The Holding Company Sify Techonologies Limited had issued stock eptions under Associate Stock Option Plan (ASOF) ASOP 2014, The Compensation Committee of the Holding
Company grants the options an the basis of performance, eriticality and potential of the employees as identified by the management of Holding Company . Each option entitics the holder
ta purchase one American Depository Share (ADS) at an exercise price determined by the Compensation committee on the date of the grant.

The fair value of stock options granted has been measured using the Black Scholes model at the date of the grant. The Black Scholes model includes essumptions regarding dividend
yields, expected volatility, expected term (or “option life™) and risk free interest rates. In respect of the options granted, the expected term is estimated based on the vesting term,
contractual term as well as expected exercise behaviour of the employees receiving the option. Expected volatility of the option is bused on historical volatility, during a period
equivalent to the option life, of the ebserved market prices of the Company’s publicly traded cquity shares. Share prices for the year 2011-12 have been climinated in determining
volatility as there had been extra ordinary price movements during the said period on account of capital infusion by promoters. Dividend vicld of the aptions is based on the recent
dividend activity. Risk-frce intercst rates are based on the Goverament sceuritics yield in effect at the time of the grant. These assumptions reflect management’s best estimates, but these
assumptions involve inherent market uncertainties based on market conditions generally outside the Company’s control. As a result, if other assumptions had been used in the current
period, stock-based compensation expense could have been materally impacted. Further, if management uses different assumptions in the future periods, stock compensation expense
could be materially impacted in future years.

The estimated fair value of stock options is charged to income on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award
was, in substance, multiple awards. Stock Compensation Expenses is reimbursed to the Holding Company.

35, Financial instruments
a. Derivative financial instruments

i. Forward and option contracts .

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are purchased to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign cxchange rates associated with certain payables, reccivables and forecasted
transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies. These derivative contracts are initially recognized at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative contracts are recognized immediately in profit or loss, The counterparties for these
contracts are generally banks or financial institutions. There are no outstanding forward contracts as af March 31, 2023,

ii. Swap Arrangements

The Company has entered into swap arrangement comprising of Cross Currency Swap {on Principal repayment) and Interest rate swap (floating to fixed), in order to hedge the cash flows
arising out of the Principal and Interest payments of the underlying External Commercial Borrowing denominated in USD. The pericd of the swap contract is co terminus with the period
of the underlying ECB. As per the terms of the arangement, the Company shall pay INR fixed and receive fixed USD principal cash flows during the term of the contract and the
Company shall pay fixed rate of interest (8.9%) and receive vatiable rate of interest equal to SOFR + 2.5% on notional amount. The swap arrangement is marked ta market at the end of
every period and profit / losses are recognised in the Staterent of Profit and Loss. The details of Cross Currency Swap and Interest Rates Swap is as follows:

’ a. Cross Currency Swap

The outstanding balanees as on March 31, 2025 is as follows

Particulars Value of the ¥ term loan Value of the USD principal Mark to Market

(Million) losses/ (gain)
Tranche 1 441 USD 0.6 -
Tranche 2 662 usD 0.9 -
Total 1,103 USD 1.5 -

The outstanding halances as on Mareh 31, 2024 (Restated) is as follows

Particulars Value of the T term loan Value of the USD principal Mark to Market

(Million) losses/ (gain)
Tranche 1 735 USD 1.0 -
Tranche 2 1,103 UsD 1.5 -
Total 1,838 UsD 2.5 -

The maturity of these contracts extends till five years and six months. The table below summarizes the cash flows (principal) of these derivative financial instruments into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at the end of the year:

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 (Restated)
Receivable Payable Recejvable Payable
(USD) (4] (USD) (4]
Less than I year 10 735 10 735
One o two years 5.0 368 10 735
Two to three years - - 5 368
Three to four years - - - -

Four to five years - - - -
More than five years - - -

Total cash flows 15.0 1,103 25 1.838
The Company recognized a net loss on the ¢ross currency swaps of ¥ Nil [Previous year : Z Nil] for the year ended March 31§, 2025,

FRN: 0019375
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b. Interest rate swap:

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

The maturity of these contracts extends till five years and six months. The table below summarizes the cash flows (interest) of these derivative financial instruments into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at the end of the year:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 (Restated)
Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
(USD) ® (UsD) )
Less than 1 vear 1 74 139
Qne to two years * 12 1 74
Two to three years - - * 12
Three to four years - - - .
Four to five years - - - -
More than five years - - - -
Total cash flows 1 86 3 225

* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company :
Total notional amount outstanding as on March 31, 2025 is USD 15 (previous year: USD 25)

The Company recognized a net mark to market gain on the interest rate swaps of T 85 during the year ended March 31, 2025 (Previous year: mark to market gain of ¥ 85).

b. Financial instruments by category
The camrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2025 were as follows:

Financial assets/ Financial assets/ Financial Tota! carrying
Particulars liahilities at liabilities at assets/liabilities Total fair value
amortised cost FVTPL at FYTOCI value
Assets
Investments - - 22,975 22,975 22,975
Trade receivables 28,793 - - 28,793 28,793
Cash and Bank balances 33,247 - . 33,247 13,247
Other financial assets 34,555 - - 34,555 34,555
Derivative financial instruments - i85 - 185 185
Liabilities )
Borrowings from banks & others 1,62,930 - - 1,62,930 1,62,930
6% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 43,327 43,327 43,327
Borrowings from holding company & fellow subsidiaries 0 4] 0
8.95% Non - Convertible Debentures 25,000 - - 25,000 25,000
Lease Liabilities 30,240 - B 30,240 30,240
Trade payables 20,448 - - 20,448 20,448
Other financial liabilities 7,874 - - 7,874 7,874
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by each category as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) were as follows:
Financial assets/  Financial assets/ Financial .
Rarticulars kiabilities at liabilities at assets/liabilities Total carrying Total fair value
amortised cost FVTPL at FVTOCI value
Assets
Investments - - 12,580 12,980 12,980
Trade receivables 26,128 - - 26,128 26,128
Cash and Bank balances 29,191 - - 29,191 29,191
Other financial assets 16,242 - - 16,242 16,242
Derivative financial instruments - 270 - 270 270
Liabilities
Bormowings from banks & others . 1,411,171 - - 141,171 1,41,171
6% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 54,675 - - 54,675 54,675
Borrowings from holding company & fellow subsidiaries 2,980 - - 2,980 2,980
8.95% Non - Convertible Debentures ’ - - - ] 0
Lease Liabilities 29,034 - - 29,034 25,034
Trade payables ) 13,914 - - 13,914 13,914
Other financial liabilities 10,867 - - 10,867 10,867

Details of financial assets pledged as collateral

The canrying amount of financial assets as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 that the Company has provided as collateral for obtzining borrowing and other facilities from the

bankers are as follows:

Trade receivables
Cash and Bank halances

FRN 001595
Mo 27,
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D. Nokes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

(All amounts ar¢ in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

c. Fair value measurements:
The details of assets and lizbilities that are measured on fair value on recurring basis are given below:
Fair value as of March 31, 2025 Fair value as of March 31, 2024 (Restated)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Derivative financial assets - gain on outstanding forward - - - - -
contracts

Liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities - loss on outstanding - .
option/forward contracts .

Derivative financial liabilitics - loss on outstanding cross - - - R
CULTENCY SWaps

Derivative financial liabilities - (Gain) / loss on - - 85 - - 85
outstanding intcrest rate swaps

= Level | — unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

* Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices).

+ Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

d. Interest incomef{expenses}, gains/(losses) recognized on financial assets and liabilities

Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
(a) Financial asscts at amortiscd cost
Interest income on bank deposits 1,893 2,205
Interest income on other financial assets 209 93
Impairment on trade receivables (150) {300)
(b} Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Net gains/(losses) on fair valuation of derivative financial instruments 3 (85)
(c) Financia! liabilities at amortised cost
Interest expenses on lease cbligations (2,793} (2,701)
Interest expenses on bomrowings from banks, others and overdrafts (12,488) (9,304)

36, Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
» Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
*» Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment acd oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established a risk
management policy to identifyy and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence {o limits. Risk management
systems are revicwed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the tisk management framework. The Board of Directors are assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit, Internal
Audit undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Directors.

Subramaniam §1.,
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Credit risk:
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractunl obligations and arises prineipally from the
Company's trade receivables, treasury operations and ether activities that are in the nature of leases.

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Management considers that the demographics of the Company’s customer
base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of the customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of the business.

Cash and Bank balances and other investments
In the area of treasury operations, the Company is prescntly exposed to counter-party risks relating to short term and medium term deposits placed with banks. The Chief Financial
Officer is responsible for monitoring the counterparty credit risk, and has been vested with the authority to seek Board’s approval to hedge such risks in case of need.

Exposure to credit risk

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recogmized represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum expesure to credit risk as at March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024 was as follows:

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)

Other investments 22,975 12,980
Trade receivables ’ 28,793 26,128
Cash and Bank balances 33,247 29,191
Other financial assets 34,740 16,512
' : 1.19.755 34,811

Financial assets
There is no other ¢lass of financial assets that is past due but not impaired other than trade receivables. The age analysis of trade receivables have been considered from the date of”
invoice. Refer Note D (7) for ageing of trade receivables and for activity in the allowance for impairment of trade teceivables.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and bank balances, other asscts, other receivables and finance lease receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company’s approach 1o managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficicnt liquidity to mect its liabilities when due, under normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to
meet expected operational expenses, servicing of financial abligations. In addition, the Company has concluded arrangements with well reputed Banks, and has utused fines of credit
that could be drawn upon should there be a need. The Company is also in the process of negotiating additional facilities with Banks for funding its requirements.

The following are the contractual maturitics of financial liabilities, in¢luding estimated intercst payments and excluding the impact of netiing agreements:

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying  Contractual cash 0-12 months 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 Years

amount flows
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks & Others 1,62,930 2,41,481 29,712 65,370 58,246 88,153
6% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 43,327 54,401 7,333 14,670 14,666 17,732
Barrowings from Holding company & Fellow Subsidiaries - - - - - -
8.95% Non - Convertible Debentures 25,000 57,451 2,238 o 4476 4,476 46,261
Lease Liabilities 30,240 94,457 4,927 9,903 8,669 70,958
Trade payables 20,448 20,448 20,448 - - -
Other financial liabilities 7,874 7.874 7,874 - - -
2,89.819 4,76,112 72,532 94,419 86,057 2,23,104

As at March 31, 2024 {Restated)

Particulars Carrying  Contractual cash 0-12 months 1-3 years 3-5 years >5 Years

amount flows

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings from banks 1,41,171 1,82,180 31,845 66,820 48,517 34,998
6% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 54,675 68,553 7,333 14,666 14,670 31,884
Borrowings from Holding company & Fellow Subsidiaries 2,980 3,329 1,093 2,236 - -
8.95% Non - Convertible Debentures - - - - - -
Leasc Liabilitics 20,034 $7,085 4,455 5,727 7,629 66,274
Trade payables 13,914 13,914 13,914 - - -
Other financial liabilities 10,867 10,867 10,867 - - -

2,52,641 3.65.928 68,507 1.33,156

FRN: 0019978
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Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument
may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments, Market risk is attributable to all
market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk
(currency risk), interest rate risk and the market value of its investments. Thus the Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue
generating and eperating activities in foreign currencies.

Currency risk;

The Company's exposure in USD, Euro and other foreign currency denominated transactions gives rise to Exchange rate fluctuation risk. Company’'s policy in this regard incorporates:
- Forecasting inflows and outflows denominated in USS$ for a twelve-month peried

- Estimating the net-cxposure in foreign cumrency, in terms of titning and amount.

- Determining the extent fo which exposure should be protected through one or more risk-mitigating instruments to maintain the permissible limits of uncovered exposures.

- Carrying out a variance analysis between estimate and actual on an ongoing basis, and taking stop-loss action when the adverse movements breaches the 5% barmier of deviation,
subject to review by Board of Directors.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2025 was as follows:
All amounts in respective currencies as mentioned (in lakhs)

Cash and bank . Foreign Currency  Net Balance
Trade receivables
balances Loan Shect exposure

Usp * 23 (15} 8

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk as at March 31, 2024 (Restated) was as follows:
All amounis in respective currencies as mentioned (in lakhs)
Cash and bank Trade receivables Foreign Currency  Net Balance
halances Loan Sheet exposure
UsD 2 27 (25) 4
A 10% strengthening of the rupec against the respective currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have increased / (decreased) other comprehensive income and profit
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Other
comprehensive Profit/(loss)
income
March 31, 2025 . (66)
March 31, 2024 (Restated) . - (33)

A 10% weakening of the rupee against the above currencies as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that an upward movement in interest rates would adversely affect the borrowing costs of the Company.

Profile
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows:

Carrying amount

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assels
- Fixed deposits with banks 17,689 35,600
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings from banks - -
- Borrowings from others 68,327 57,655
¥ariable rate instruments
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings from banks* 1,63,488 141,171

- Bank overdrafts - -
* Term loan from NIIF has a fixed rate of Interest rate for 5 years post which the spread shall be increased or decreased based on terms of loan.
Fair value sensitivity for fixed rate instruments '
The Company docs not account for any fixed rate financial assets and [izbilitics at fair value through profit er loss, and the Company does not designate derivatives {interest rate swaps)
as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge acceunting model. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would net affect profit or loss.

FRN: 0016575 .
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Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments

(All amounts arc in Indian Rupees lakhs cxcept sharc data and as stated)

An increase of 100 basis points in intercst rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased} equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that

all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant,

Equity

Profit or (loss)

March 31, 2025
March 31,2024

(Restated)

€ 3-)

A decrease of 100 basis peints in the intercst rates at the reporting date would have had equal but opposite effect on the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variable remain

constant,

37. Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amounts required to be spent by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 towards Corparate Social
Responsibility (CSR) are T 218 and % 217 respectively. The details of CSR expenditure and CSR activities carried out by the Company are as follows,

Amount required to be spent during the year
Amount of expenditure incurred
Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shorifall

Nature of CSR activities
The details of CSR activities carried out by the Company are as follows:

For the year

For the year ended

ended March 31 2024
March 31, 2025 (Restated)
218 217
220 217

Name of the Organisation

For the year

For the year ended

Nature of activity ended March 31 2024
. March 31, 2025 {Restated)
Voluntary Health Services, Chennai Promotion of health care 20, 15
Shree Anand Charitable Trust, Mumbai Livelihood enhancement 50 0
Sri Veda Paripalana Sabha Livelihood enhancement 2 0
Raju Vegesna Foundation, Visakhapatnam™* Livelihcod cnhancement 148 202
Total 220 217

* The trust is controlled by Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company

38. Contract Balantes

The following table provides information about

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Trade Receivables 28,793 26,128
Contract liabilities - Deferred Revenue 3,553 3,374
Sipnificant changes in deferred revenue balances during the year are as follows
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
(Restated)
Revenue recognised that was included in the deferred revenue at the beginning of the year 3.374 3.426

Cests 1o fulfil customer contracts are deferred and amortized over the contract period, For the perod ended March 31, 2025 the Company has capitalised
T NIL (previous year T NIL) and amortised ¥ NIL (previous year T NIL). There was no impairment loss in relation to the capitalised cost.
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39, Dues to micro, small or medium enterprises

As per the Office memorandum issued by the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises dated August 26, 2008 recommends that the Micro and Small Enterpriscs should
mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 has
been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. As the records available with the company, there are dues payable to micro, small
and medium enterprises as on March 31, 2025. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date,

As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024 (Restated)
a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 327 91
b. the amount of interest paid by the buyer beyond the appointed day during the accounting year - -

c. the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 i h
d. the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year -
¢. the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when the interest dues above are

actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

40, Capijtal management

The Company's capital comprises equity share capital, share preminm, retained earnings and other squity attributable te equity holders. The primary objective of Company's capital
management is to maximise shareholders value. The Company manages its capital and makes adjusiment to it iz light of the changes in economic and market canditions. The Company
daes so by adjusting dividend paid to shareholders. The total capital as on March 31, 2025 is X £,74,088 (previous year; ¥ 1,54,818).

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt comprises of Jong term and short term borrewings less cash and bank
balances. Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as capital. The gearing at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,
2024 (Restated)
Debt . 2.31,815 1,98,826
Less: cash and bank balances (33.247) (29,191}
Nct debt A 1,98,568 1,69.635
Equity B 1,74,083 1,54,818
Net debt to Equity ratio ' AB 114% 110%

41. Merger of Print House (India) Private Limited

During FY 2020-21, Sify Technologies Limited ("STL") has acquired Print House India Private Limited (PHIPL) through Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. STL emerged as
successful Resolution Applicant (RA) vide Hon’'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) order dated June 23, 2020, STL took over the management of affairs of PHIPL on
Ogtober 16, 2020,

During FY2022-23, the Board of Directors has approved for submitting a Scheme of Amalgamation ('Scheme) for the merger of its fellow subsidiary, Print House (India) Private Limited
('PHIPL') with Sify Infinit Spaces Limited (‘SISL') with Hon'ble NCLT. The Company has filed the Scheme of Amalgamation with NCLT. The appointed date of the Scheme was April 1,
2022, Further, Sify Infinit Spaces Limited has recelved approval for the said Scheme from the sharcholders and unsecured creditors of the Company at its meeting held on November 27,
2022 convened by Hon'ble NCLT, Chennai. Honble NCLT has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation filed by Sify Infinit Spaces Limited an July 10, 2023, As per the Hon'ble NCLT
order, SISL has issued 8,359,762 equity shares to the shareholders of PHIPL

42. Aequisition of SKVR Software Solution Private Limited

Sify Technologies Limited {Holding Company) has acquired SKVR Software Solution Private Limited (*SKVR™), a company engaged in Data Centre Busines, through a Share Purchase
Agreement dated 1st  September 2023, fhe Company has been paid T 4000 as censideration fo shareholders of SKVR with 51% and 49% of the purchase price paid by Sify
Technologics Limited and Sify Infint Spaces Limited, respectively.

SKVR helds 19,305 square meters of land allotted by the New Okhla Industrial Develepment Authority (“NOIDA™) for a period of 90 years (effective from 2006). Share sransfer was
executed on March 26, 2025. The Leasehold land owned by SKVR has been used for construction of Data Cenire.,

43. Audit Trial

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit wail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit irail has been preserved as per
the statutory requirements for record retention.

FRN: 0019975
No: 27,
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Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
CIN:UM999TN2017PLC119607
D, Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees lakhs except share data and as stated)

45. Events after the reporting period

There ate no significant events that have oceurred afier the reporting period till the date of these financial statements that requires adjustments/disclose in these financial statements.

Jfor Manohar Chowdhry & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sify Infinit Spaces Limited
Firm Registration No.: 0019978 CIN:U74999TN2017PLC11%607
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